SPARKASSE BANK DD BIH
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This version of the report Is a translation from the original, which was prepared In Bosnian language. All
possible care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original.
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of our financial reports and the accompanying audit report takes precedence over this translation,
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Responsibility for the financial statements

Responsibllities of the Management Board and Supervisory Board for the preparation and
approval of the annual financial statements

The Management Board is required to prepare financial statements for each financlal year, which give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Bank and of the results of its operations and cash
flows In accordance with applicable accounting standards, and is responsible for maintalning proper
accounting records which enabie the preparation of financial statements at any time. The Management
Board has a general responsibllity for taking such steps which are reasonably avallable to safeguard
the assets of the Bank and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The Management Board is responsible for selecting sultable accounting policies which conform to
applicable legal requirements and apply them consistently; for making judgements and estimates which
are reasonable and prudent; and for preparation of the financial statements on a going concern basis
unless It is inappropriate to presume that the Bank will continue in business.

The Management Board is responsible for the submission of annual report to the Supervisory Board
together with the annual financial statements, following which the Supervisory Board is required to
approve the annual financlal statements for submission to the General Assembly for adoption.

The financlal statements set out on pages 8 to 94 were authorised by the Management Board on 14
April 2022 for issuance to the Supervisory Board, and are signed below to signify this on behalf of the
Bank:

For and on behalf of Sparkasse bank d.d. BiH :
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Amir Softi¢ ] igsr-BilandZlja
President of the Management Board Member of the Management Board

Sparkasse Bank dd BiH
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholder of Sparkasse Bank d.d. Bosna | Hercegovina:

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Sparkasse Bank d.d. Bosna | Hercaegovina {the “Bank”) as at 31 December 2021, and iis financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the statutory accounting
regulations applicable to banks in the Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina.

What we have audited
The Bank's financial statements comprise:

the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021;

the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then ended;
the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which Include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibllities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We are Independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants {including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code) and the ethical requirements of the Law on
accounting and auditing in the Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in the Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina. We have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibillties in accordance with the IESBA Code and the ethical requirements of the Law
on accounting and auditing in the Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina.

PricewaterhouseCoopers d.0.0., Fra Andjela Zvizdovica 1, 71000 Sarajevo, Bosnia and Herzegovina
T: +387 (0) 33 821 600, F: +387 {0) 33 295 235, www.pwe.ba

Registered at the Municipality court in Sarajevo, Reg.No.: 65-01-0373-12

Tax No.: 4200881410005; VAT No.: 200881410005

Account No.: 1610000082540027, Raiffeisen BANK d.d. Bosna i Hercegovina
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Other information

The Management Board Is responsible for the other information. The other information obtained at
the date of this auditor's report is the Bank’s Annual business report as prescribed by the Law on
accounting and auditing of the Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina (but does not include the
separate financial statements and our auditor's report thereon).

Qur opinion on the sapérate financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the separate financial statements, our responsibility Is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the separate financial statements or our knowledge obtalned In the audit, or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date
of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Our audit approach
Overview
Materiallty o Overall materiality:
Bosnia and Herzegovina's Convertible Marks ("BAN") 2,438
thousand, which represents 1% of net assets of the Bank
Key audit matters o Estimate of credit loss allowances for loans and advances to

customers

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiallty and assessed the risks of material
misstatement in the financial statements. In particular, we considersd where the Management Board
made subjective jJudgements; for example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that
Involved making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of
our audits, we also addressed the risk of the Management Board override of internal controls,
including among other matters consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that represented
a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

We tailored the scope of our audit in order to parform sufficient work to enable us to provide an
opinion on the financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Bank, the
accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which the Bank operates.
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Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. An audit s designed to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
Misstatemenis may arise due to fraud or error. They are considered material if individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of the financial statements.

Based on our professional Judgement, we determined certain quantitative thresholds for materiality,
including the overall materiality for the financlal statements as a whole as set out in the table below.
These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and
the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of misstatements, If
any, both Individually and In aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

Overall materiality BAM 2,438 thousand

How we determined It 1% of net assets of the Bank

1% of net assets was estimated at the planning stage of the audit.
Reassessment of the materlality level performed during the audit did
not identify a requirement to update the materiality level due to lack of
significant influence on the audit plan.

Ratlonale for the In the context of the shareholding structure of the Bank, which Is
materlality benchmark wholly owned by an International group, and taking into account the
applied interest of the other key stakeholders, who are regulators, depositors,

debt holders and others, whose primary focus are the Bank's capital
adequacy and ability to fulfil its obligations, we considered it
appropriate to determine the materiality by reference to the capital
resources of the Bank, using net assets as a proxy for capital for the
purpose of materlality determination.

We chose 1% which we belleve is within the range of acceptable
quantitative materiality thresholds for this benchmark in the
circumstances.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, In our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financlal statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinlon thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter

How cur audit addressed the key audit matter

Esfimate of credit loss allowances for loans and advances fo
customers

Refer to Note 33 “Risk Management”, Note 4 “Criicat
accounting judgments and key sources of estimation

, Note 25 "Impalrment losa on financial
Iinstruments and provisions” and Note 8 “Financial assets at
amortized cost’ fo the financlal statements for detaled
information on the expected credit losses (“ECL") for loans and
advances to customaers.

Aa at 31 Decamber 2021, gross loans and advances o
customers and credlt loss allowances amounted to BAM
1,362,231 thousand and BAM 85,553 thousand, respectivaly.

Wa focused on this area during the audit due ic the significance
of the amounts involved for the financial statements and alsc
because the Management Board makes complex and subjective
Judgements over both the timing and slze of ECL, which makes
It a complex area of acoounting. ’

For loans In stage 1 ECL are generally collectively maasured at
&n amount equal fo 12-month expected credit loss. if a
significant Increase in credit risk has occumed, cradit loss
sllowances are measured as lifetime ECL. For defaulted loans
that are considered not to be individually significant, ECL are
collectively assessed.

In all of the cases above, the ECL la determined by using the
key assumpfions being the probability of an account falling into
arrears and subsequently defauling ("PD"), definition of
significant Increase in credit risk, exposure at the moment of
default (EAD") and the estimated lossea from defaulted loans
{'1LGD"). Statisical models ane usad for determination of the key
assumptions Including different future macroeconomic
scenarios.

For defaulied loans consldered to be significant at customer
level, ECL Is determined on an individual basis. In these cases,
ECL Is determined by using key assumptions being the scenario

probablifies, axpacted cash flows as well as expected proceeds
from the realization of collateral (where applcable).

The Banking Agency of the Faderation of Bosnla and
Herzegovina ("FBA") has lasuad the Daclsion on Credit Risk
Management and Determining Expected Credit Losses (the
"Declsion”), prescribing the minimum impalrment rates In the
caleulation of ECL. This Declsion became affective from 1
January 2020 onwerd. The rates presciibed by the Decislon
override the results of the estimates of the statistical models
as axplained above in those cases where the rates glvan by
the Dacleion give rise to higher ECL levels.

Our audit approach Included the following procedures:

= We obtalned an In-depth underetanding of the ECL calculation
methodology applled by the Bank and the acdjustments made to
the mote! as a reautt of the Implementation of the Declslon. We
also obtained understanding of the adjustments made o the
model a8 a result of the Management Board's assessment of
the Covid-19 impact and we assassed their compllance with the
applicable requirements. We engaged our credit sk speclalists
fo assist us In completing this assessment.

* We evaluated control activities In credit risk management and
lending business processes and tested controls that we
conskiered relevant for our audit approach, as appropriate.

* We evaluated control activities and tested selected controls in
the area of critical data, Incuding the procaess of allocating loans
and advances to customers fo proper ECL stages and valuation
of collaterals, and also assessed the independent PD and
LED model validation framework, risk parameter valldation
results and overall model govemnance for ECL calculation.

« We testad the accuracy of the critical data In the source
systoms and thelr input In the ECL calculation engine (PD, LGD
and customers ratings).

* We assessed the process of incorporating the forward-looking
information in the ECL estimate.

= Wa tested the statistical models used by the Management
Board to determine key assumptions (PD, LGD, EAD) to
assess whether the calculation process was consistent with our
expectations.

« We analysed the sensitfvity analysis for PD In order to
understand and discuss this driver of estimation uncertainties
underying the ECL model.

* \Wa tested, on a sample basls, the appropriateness of loans
staging allocation in accordance with the Bank's intemel
methodologies.

* e tested, on a sample basls, moratoria approvals and staging
of exposures under the monatoria, induding the stage overlay.

* Wa verified the reconclliation of the output of the ECL
calculetion engine with the accounting records.

* We tested, on a sample bases, the adequacy of individual loan
loss allowances, assessing the forecasted scenarios and the
estimated expected cash flows.

* We tested, on a sample bases, the Implementation of the
Decilsion with regard o the application of the minimum
Impaiment rates.
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Responsibilities of Management Board and Supervisory Board for the financial
statements

The Management Board is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements In accordance with the statutory accounting regulations applicable to banks In the
Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina, and for such internal control as the Management Board
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management Board is responsible for assessing the Bank’s
abllity to continue as a golng concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Management Board either intends to
liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Supervisory Board is responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financlal statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when It exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exerclse professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financlal statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud Is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

o Obtaln an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank's internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
astimates and related disclosures made by the Management Board.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management Board's use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's abiilty to continue as
a going concemn. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are Inadequate, to modify our oplnion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
avidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Bank io cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
avents In a manner that achleves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Supervisory Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Supervisory Board with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions
taken to eliminate threats or related safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Supervisory Board, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report Is PrimoZ Kovati¢.

For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers d.0.0.

Refer Lo the original signed

Bosnian version

Mirza Bihorac, Director and licensed auditor

Sarajevo, Bosnla and Herzegovina

14 April 2022



Izvjestaj o finansijskom polozaju
na dan 31. decembra 2021. godine
(svi iznosi su iskazani u hiljadama BAM, osim ukoliko nije drugacije naznac¢eno)

31. decembar

31. decembar

Napomene 2020. 2021.
Imovina

Novac i nov&ani ekvivalenti 5 331.519 433.391
Finansijska imovina po fer vrijednost kroz bilans uspjeha 6 111 127
Finansijska imovina po fer vrijednosti kroz ostalu sveobuhvatnu dobit 7 163.137 163.705
Finansijska imovina po amortiziranom trosku 8 1.158.111 1.276.678
Nekretnine i oprema 9 32.426 31.181
Ulaganja u nekretnine 9 1.025 999
Nematerijalna imovina 9 5.031 4.606
Imovina s pravom koristenja 9 3.215 3.307
Ulaganja u pridruZzena drustva 10 607 607
Unaprijed placeni porez na dobit 1.467 -
Odgodena porezna imovina 28 1.829 2.222
Ostala imovina 11 6.142 8.628
Ukupno imovina 1.704.620 1.925.451

Obaveze i kapital
Finansijske obaveze koje se mjere po amortiziranom tro$ku 1.459.245 1.649.332
Depoziti od banaka 12 146.649 92.280
Obaveze po uzetim kreditima 13 38.836 27.835
Depoziti od klijenata 14 1.273.760 1.529.217
Obaveze po osnovu najmova 15 3.145 3.344
Rezervisanja 16 9.084 9.683
Tekuce porezne obaveze 28 - 554
Ostale obaveze 17 10.544 17.099
Ukupne obaveze 1.482.018 1.680.012
Dionicki kapital 18 86.473 86.473
Dioni¢ka premija 3.000 3.000
Akumulirana dobit 128.937 153.667
Rezerve fer vrijednosti 4.192 2.299
Ukupno kapital 222.602 245.439
Ukupno obaveze i kapital 1.704.620 1.925.451

Racunovodstvene politike i napomene u nastavku ¢ine sastavni dio ovih finansijskih izvjestaja.

Sparkasse Bank dd BiH 8



Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2021
(all amounts are expressed in thousand BAM, unless otherwise staied)

Notes 2020 2021
Net Interest income 18 44,908 46,332
Interest income 54,705 58,712
Interest expanse 9,787 -8 380
Net fea and commission Income 20 20,082 23,524
Fee and commission income 25,755 30,089
Fee and commission expanse -5,683 -8.565
Other similar expense -438 -797
Dividend Income 21 288 225
Net trading result 22 2,854 4,660
Gains/losses from financial instruments measured at FVTPL L - 16
Rental Income from [nvestment properties & other operaling leases 23 327 344
Personnel sxpenses 24 -20.750 -21,050
Other administrative exponses 24 -18,391 -17.891
Depreclation and amartisation 24 -5,356 5,291
Impzirment losses of financlal instruments and provislons 25 -13,919 -7.837
Other operating income 28 13,536 13.011
Other operating sxpenses 27 -12.123 -12.385
Pre-tax result 12,993 26,961
Income tax 28 887 2231
Net result for the pariod 12,008 24,730
Other comprehenslive Income 351 -1,956
items that may be reciassified fo profit or loss 351 -1,956
Dabt Instruments at falr value threugh other comprehensive Income =228 -2.168
Deferred taxes relating to lems that may be reclassified 579 210
ltemns that will not be reclassified Io profit or loss - -
Total comprehensive income 12,359 22,774
Eaming= per share
Baslc and diluted samings 29 13.89 28.60

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Sparkasse Bank dd BiH ]



Statement of changes in equity

for the year ending 31 December 2021
{all amounts are expressed In thousand BAM, uniess otherwise stated)

Share Capltal Retained Revaluation Total
capltal reserves eaming ressrvas
and capital
eamings
1 January 2020 86.473 3,000 118,929 3.841 210,243
Total comprehensive income - - 12,008 3561 12,369
Profit for the vear - - 12,008 - 12,008
Other cornprehensive income - - - 3517 351
31 Decamber 2020 BE 473 3.000 128,037 4,192 222,802
1 January 2021 56,473 3,000 128,937 4,192 222,002
Total comprehensive incoma - - 24,730 -1,856 22,774
Profit for the year - - 24,730 - 24,730
Other comprehensive income - - - -1.9566 -1.856
Other adjustments - - - 83 63
81 December 2021 86,473 3.000 153,667 2,200 245439
The accompanying accounting policles and notes form an Integral part of these financial statements.
Sparkasse Bank dd BiH 10



Statement of cash flows
for the year ending 31 December 2021

(all amounts are expressed In thousand BAM, unless otherwise slafed)

2020 2021
Operating activities
Profit before taxation 12.995 26.961
Adjustments:
Depreciation and amortization (Maots 24) 5356 5201
Impalmnent losses and provisions 14,164 4,144
Loss / (gain) on sale of tanglble and intangible assets. net 80 -10
Galn on disposal of respossesed collateras, net - -3,516
Accrued expenses - 1,600
Modification effects IFRS 16 244 -38
Effects of change In FV of financlal asssts designated at FVTPL - =18
___Interest axpanse from IFRS 18 recognized In the statement of profit of loss 44 64
Interest income on financial instruments recoanized at FVOCI 1,795 2126
Dividend Income racognized in statement of profit and loss {Note 21) -286 225
Chenqges In operating assets and Nabliities:
Decrease / (increase! In placements with other banks, before allowance, net 0620 -10.058
Increase in loans and advances to customers, before allowance. net -89.005 -110.815
Increase in other assets, before allowance, net =2.920 -1,833
Increase In due to customers. net 124, 884 255 467
Decreass In due fo other banks net 2,462 -65.370
Increase / (decrease| In provisions, net 392 =239
{Decrease) / increase in other liabilities. net -1,500 8.258
Income tax pald -p87 -2.23
NET CASH GENERATED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES 88,844 105.501
investing activities
_Purchass of financlal assets FVOCI -996 -602
Purchase of proparty and egquipmant, and Intangible assets 4,093 -2.730
Proceeds from diapossl of property and equipment, and Intanglble assets 2 2713
Proceeds from dispcsal of repo d assets - 2138
Dividend recelved 286 225
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES -4,801 =598
Financing activities
_Repayment of lease princlpal -1,437 -2.9687
Rep:ayment of lease Interest -44 84
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,481 -3,031
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 82,562 101,872
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS A8 AT 1 JANUARY 245,957 831,618
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 331,519 433,391
The accompanying accounting policies and notes form an integral part of these financlal statements.
Sparkasse Bank dd BiH - 11



Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
(all amounts are expressed in thousand BAM, unless otherwise stated)

1. GENERAL

History and incorporation

SPARKASSE Bank d.d. BiH (,Bank"} has been registered on 9 July 1999 with the relevant court in Sarajeve,
under the number U/1-1291/99. On 28 July 1998, the Bank obtained the permit te conduct its business from
Federal Banking Agency (hereinafter the “FBA"), number 01-376/89. The Bank's headquarter is in Sarajevo,
Zmaja od Bosne 7.

The majority shareholder of the Bank Is Stelermarkische Bank und Sparkassen AG, Graz Austria lts share
amounting 100%. The ultimate awner i& Erste Group Bank AG Vienna, Austra (“Erste Group”). The Erste
Group consolidated financlal statements can be found on the following address: Am Belvedere 1, Vienna,

Austria.

Principal activities of the Bank

The Bank offers banking services through a developed branch network in Bosnia and Herzegovina:

Ll A

U

10.
1.
12,
13.

accapting all types of cash deposlts and other monetary assets;

receiving and taking loans and finance leass;

giving all types of financial guarantees;

particlpation, purchase and sale of instruments on cash and capital market for own purposes
and on behalf of other parties;

payment transactions and money transfer services;

purchase and sale of foraign currencles;

Issuance and managemsnt of payment instruments (including credit cards, travel and bank
checks);

storing and managing securltles and other valuables;

financlal management services;

purchase and sale of securities;

factoring and forfelting servicas;

insurance intermediation services in accordance with relevant leglslation;

other operations arising from points 1-12 of this paragraph and other operations as a joint
stock company.

Sparkasse Bank dd BiH 12



Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
(eﬂinounts are exprossead in thousand BAM, unless otherwise stated)

1. GENERAL {CONTINUED)
Managing bodiss of the Bank

Supervisory Board:
Gerhard Maler

Renate Ferlitz

Maximilian Clary und Aldringen

Christoph Schoefboeck
Ismeta Cardakovié
Zellko Sain

Management Board;
Amir Softié
Sanel Kusturica
Igor Biland2ija
Amer HadZlkad|é
Igor Joklé

Audit Board:
Zlatan Jagarevi¢
Sandra Pefrclzek — Mahr
Aida Sivro — Rahimié
Damir Sokolovié
Andrea Ralner

President

Member

Member until 26 May 2021
Member from 26 May 2021
Independent member
Independent member

Chairman of the Management Board from 1 February 2021
Chairman of the Management Board untii 31 January 2021
Member of the Management Board, from 18 October 2020
Member of the Management Board from 1 February 2021
Member of the Management Board from 1 January 2022

President
Member
Member
Member
Member

Sparkasse Bank dd BiH
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
(all amounts are expressed In thousand BAM, unless otherwise stated)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
a) Basls of preparation

The financlal statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with the statutory accounting
regulations applicable to banks In the Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina (hereinafter “FBiH™), which are
based on the Law on Accounting and Auditing in the FBIH, Law on Banks of FBIH, and bylaws of the FBA,
passed based on aforementioned laws.

e The Law on Accounting and Auditing in FBiH stipulates preparation of the financial statements in
accordance with the Internatlonal Financlal Reporting Standards (hereinafter “IFRS").

o The Law on Banks of FBiH stipulates preparation of annual financial statements in accordance with
the aforementioned Law on Accounting and Auditing in the FBiH, this iaw and bylaws passed based
on both laws.

o FBA adopted the Decision on Credit Risk Management and Determining Expected Credit Losses
(hereinafter the “Declislon”}, which Is In force as of 1 January 2020, and which resulted in certain
differences arising from calculation of allowances for credit losses due to application of minimum
rates stipulated by the Decision, which are not required by IFRS 9: Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9).
The Decision has an effect on valuation of non-financlal assets arising from credit operations
(repossessed collaterals whose valuation Is within the scope of other relevant IFRSs).

In accordance with the provislons of the Decislon, as at 31 Decembar 2021, the Bank created higher
allowances for credit losses in the amount of 11,306 thousand compared to the amount calculated by using
the Bank's Internal model In line with the requirements of IFRS 9. This difference arose from the following
reasons:

o application of minimum impairment rates stipulated by the Article 23 of the Declslon for exposures In
Stage 1 of credlt risk — difference in the amount of BAM 1,126 thousand (for both allowances and
provision for ECL), out of which application of minimum impairment rates stipulated by the Article 26
of the Declslon for trade recelvables, factoring and other receivables refers to difference in the
amount of BAM 31 thousand.

o application of minimum impalrment rates stipulated by the Article 24 of the Decision for exposures in
Stage 2 of credit risk — difference in the amount of BAM 1,715 thousand (for both allowances and
provigsion for ECL),

e application of minimum impairment rates stipulated by the Article 26 of the Decision for exposures in
Stage 3 of credit risk (non-perferming assets) — diffierence in the amount of BAM 8,464 thousand, of
which amount of BAM 5,728 thousand refers to exposures not secured by acceptable collateral, the
amount of BAM 2,735 thousand refers to exposures secured by acceptable collateral or partly
secured by collateral (for both allowances and provision for ECL),

o application of minimum impairment rates stipulated by the Article 26 of the Declslon for trade
receivables, factoring and other recsivables — difference in the amount of BAM 31 thousand.

Sparkasse Bank dd BiH 14



Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
(all amounts are expressed in thousand BAM, unless otherwise stafed)

2, BASIS OF PREPARATION {CONTINUED)
a) Basls of preparation (continued)

The previously described differences between the statutory accounting regulations applicable to banks In
FBiIH and the requirements for recognition and measurement under International Financlal Reporting
Standards have resulted in the following effects*;

1 January 2020 31 December 2020 31 December 2021

Decrease of assets -11.717 -10,343 -10,682
Increase of liabilites 1,380 815 624
Decrease of equity -13,097 =11,258 -12,003
Net result for the year ended = 2,677 697

* Note: positive number reprasents an Increase and negative number represenis a decrease
b) Basls of preparation and measurement basis

These financlal statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain for certain
properties and financial instruments that are measured at revalued amounts or falr values at the end of each
reporting perlod.

Historical cost is generally based on the falr value of the consideration given In exchange for assets.

Fair value Is the price that would be received to sell or paid to transfer a llabllity in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price Is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the falr value of an asset or a liabllity, the
Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market particlpants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or lability at the measurement date. Falr value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements Is determined on such basis, except
leasing transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 16 and measurement that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 or value In use in IAS 38. In addition, for
financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree
to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the
fair value measurement in Its entirety, which are described as follows:
¢ Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for Identical assets or liabilities that
the Bank can access at the measurement date;
* Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included in Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
» Level 3 Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liabllity.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongolng basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate Is revised if the revision affects only that peried
or in the perlad of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
(all amounts are expressed in thousand BAM, unless otherwise stated)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
b) Basis of preparation and measurement basis {continued)

Information on amounts where significant uncertainty exists in their estimate and critical Judgments in applying
accounting policies that have the most impact on the amounts disclosed In these financial statements are
disclosed In Note 4,

These financial statements are separate standalone financial statements of the Bank.

The Bank has not consolidated Iits assoclate — Sparkasse Leasing d.o.o. Sarajevo, as the Management

Board bellaves that the conditions from IAS 28, paragraph 17 have been met:

a. The Bankis a wholly-owned subsidiary and its owner has have been Informed about, and does not
object to, the Bank not applying the equity method.

b. The Bank's debt or equity instruments are not traded in a public market,

c. The Bank did not file, ner is it in the process of filing, its financlal statements with a securities
commisgion or other regulatory organisation, for the purpose of Issulng any class of instruments in a
public market.

d. The ultimate or any intermediate parent of the Bank produces consolidated financlal statements
avallable for publlc use that comply with IFRSs, In which subslidiaries are consolidated,

In addition, by the letter of FBA No. 9666-02-16-19 dated 19 Aprll 2019, the Bank has bean exempted from
the preparation of consolidated financlal statements (1.e. freom consolidation of its assoclate).

c) Functional and presentation currency

The financlal statements are presented In Bosnlan convertible marks {("BAM"), which Is the functlonal
currency. Amounts are rounded to the nearest thousand (unless otherwise noted).

The Central Bank of Bosnla and Herzegovina ("Central Bank" or "CBBH") has Implemented an exchange rate
based on "cumrency board” according to which BAM is exchanged to EUR at 1:1,85583 ratlo (this rate was
used in 2021 and 2020), It is expected that this exchange rate will continue in the foreseeable future.

d) Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financlal statements in accordance with accounting regulations applicabls to banks in FBIH
(including IFRS requirements) requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies In use and the amounts of disclosed assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptlons are reviewed regularly. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates are changed and possibly in future periods if they are affected.

Information on areas with significant uncertainties In estimates, and Information on critical judgments in
application of accounting policles which have most significant effect on the amounts disclosed in these
ﬁnn;:ial statements of the Bank are presented in Note 4.

e) Going concern

Financlal statements are prepared under the assumpticn of going concem.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
(all amounts are expressed in thousand BAM, unless otherwise siated)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been consistently applied for all years presented in these financlal
statements,

Investments In assoclates

An assoclate is an entity over which the Bank has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to particlpate In the financial and operating policy
daclslons of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.

Measurement and recognition of Investments In assoclates In the financial statements

Investment in associate in the financial statements are stated at cost less anv Impalment in the value of
individual Investments if needed.

Interest Income and expense

Interest income Is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interast rate applicabte, which Is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash recelpts through the
expacted life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount.

Loan origination fees, after approval and drawdown of loans, are deferred (together with related direct costs)
and recognized as an adjustment to the effective vield of the loan over its life.

Interest charged on depaosits is added to the principal where this Is foreseen by the agreement, Interest income
is suspended when it is considered that recovery of the Income Is unlikely. Suspended interest is recognized
as Income when collected.

Fee and commission Income and expense

Fees and commissions consist mainly of fees eamed on domestic and foreign payment transactions, and
feas for loans and other credit instruments Issued by the Bank.

Fees for payment transactions are recognised In the perlod when services are rendered
Taxatlon

Inceme tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current Income tax

The tax expense is based on taxable income for the year. Taxable income differs from net income as reported
in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because It excludes items of Income or
expense that are taxable or deductible In other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible.

The Bank's liabllity for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting period date.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
{all amounts are expressed in thousand BAM, unless otherwise stat_ed)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Deferred income tax

Defarred tax Is the tax expected to be payabie or recoverable on differences between the carrying amount of
agsats and liabllities in the financial statements and the comesponding tax basis used in the computation of
taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liabllity method. Deferred tax liabllities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferrad tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible ternporary differences
can be utllised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting period date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are sxpectsd to apply in the period when the
llabllity is seitled or the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, except when it relates to ltems charged or creditad diractly to equity, in
which case the deferred tax Is also deait with in aquity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to Income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Bank has the ablilty and intentlon to settle on a net basls. The Bank Is subject tc various
Indirect taxes which are included in administrative expenses.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash, balances with the
Central Bank of Bosnla and Herzegovina (the “CBBH"} and current accounts with other banks.

Cash and cash equivalents excludes the obligatory minimum reserve with the CBBH as these funds are not
avallable for the Bank's day to day operations. The compulsory minimum reserve with the CBBH Is a required
reserve to be held by all commerclal banks llcensed In Bosnla and Herzegovina.

Financlal Instruments
Recognition

Financial assets and financial liabiliies are recognised when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financlal llabllities are Initially measured at fair value, Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financlal assets
and financlal llabliities at falr value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabllities, as appropriate, on Initial recognition.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
{all amounts are expressed In thousand BAM, unless otherwise stated)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial Instruments (continued)
Classlification and measurement

Under IFRS 9, all financial assets and liabiliies should be recognized in the statement of financlal position
and measured in accordance with the assigned measurement categories.

The classification of a financlal asset at Initial recognition depends on:

. the business model of the Bank for financlal asset management ~ is determined on the basls of
the business purpose of financial asset management, i.e. the assessment of whether financial
assets are held for the purpose of collecting contractual cash flows, collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets or for sale only

ii. the contractual cash flow characteristics of financial assets — Is determined on the basis of an
assessment of whether the contractual cash flows of a financial asset only pay principal and
interast ("SPPI") on the remaining amount of principal

The application of these criteria leads to the classification of financial assets in three measurement categories.
Financlal assets measured at amortised cost

Financlal assets are measured at amortized cost If they are held In a business model whose purpose is to
collect contractual cash flows and thelr contractual cash flows are SPPI.

In the statement of financial position, these assets ara stated at amortized cost, i.e. gross book value less
any impaiment loss. They are presented under "Loans and advances to customers”, “Other assets”,
*Placements with other banks”, “Obligatory reserve with the Central Bank” and "Cash and accounts at banks”,
Cash and balances with other banks Include only recelvables (deposits) from central banks and credit
Institutions that are pald on demand. Payable on demand means that they can be withdrawn at any time or
with a one work-day term or 24-hour term.

Interest income on these assets is calculated using the effective interest method and Is included in the item
“Interest and simitar income™ under “Net interest income” in the statement of profit or loss. Gains or losses on
impairment are included under “Impalrment losses on financial instruments and provisions™. Galns and losses
arising from derecognition (such as sale) of assets are stated under Other operating income.

In the Bank, financial assets at amortized cost represent the largest category of measurement, which includes
a large majority of loans to clients, interbank credit operations, deposits with central banks, amounts settled,
trade and other recslvables.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
{(all amounts are expressed in thousand BAM, unless otherwise stated)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial Instruments (continued)
Financlal assets at falr value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Financial assets of a debt Instrument are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) if the contractual cash flows are in accordance with the SPPI and are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by collecling contractual cash flows and selling assets. In the statement of
financial position, they are included as “financial assets at FVOCI",

Interest income on these assets is calculated using the effective interest rate method and is included in the
item “Interast income” under “Net interest income” in the statement of profit or loss. Gains and losses on
Impalrment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss as “Impalment losses and provisions”™ while In
the statement of financlal position are presented through equity (OCI), As & result, the impact on the statement
of profit or loss is the same as for financial assets measured at amortized cost.

The difference between the falr value at which the asset is stated in the statement of financlal posltion and
the component of the amortized cost Is recognized as accumuleted other comprehensive income, especially
within the revaluation reserve in the statement of changes in equity. The change for the peried Is reported as
an OCI In the statement of comprehensive Income as “Revaluation reserve". When a financial asset Is
derecognised, the amount previcusly accumulated In the OCI Is reclassified to profit or loss and is recognized
as “Other operating income”,

The Bank classifies Investments in debt securities measured at FVOCI. They are part of the "holding up to
collaction and selling” business model. They relate to different business objectives, such as meeting internal
{ external Bquidity risk conditions and effectively placing excess structural lquidity, strategic positions decided
by the management board, Inliating and encouraging customer relationships, replacing credit operations or
other yleld improvement activities. The common feature of investing in debt Instruments at FVOCI Is that the
aclive optimization of yield through sales Is Integral to achieving the goals. Sales are made to optimize the
liquidity position or generate gains / losses at fair value. As a result, business goals are alsc achieved by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling securities.

Financial assets at falr value through profii or loss (FVTPL)
There are various reasons for the allocation of falr value through financlal assets (FVTPL):

Financial assets whose contractual cash flows are not considered SPPI are automatically measured at
FVTPL. In the Bank's business this does not apply to loans to clients and debt securities. The main reason
for the failure to estimate SPPI Is that they have critical interest clauses that do not pass the quantitative
testing required by IFRS 9.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financlal liabilttles
Financlal liabllifles are classiflad as amortized cost unless measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabllitles measured at amortized cost

Financlal liabllities measured at amortized cost are presented in the statement of financial position under
'Financial liablliles measured at amortized cost. Under this position are included 'Deposits of banks',
'Deposlts of clients’, 'Loans' and 'Other financial liabilities',
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ending 31 December 2021
(all amounts are expressed in thousand BAM, unless otherwise stated)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financlal Instruments (continued)

Financlal Habliitles measured at amortized cost (continued)

For subsequent measurement of financiel liabllities at amortized cost, interest expense Is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss using the effective interest rate method and Is presented In the 'Interest expense'
item under 'Net interest income' In the statement of profit or loss. Galns or losses arising from the
derecognlition of a financial liability are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and are presented in the
'Other galns or losses from derecognition of financial instruments that are not measured at falr value through

profit or loss',

Impairment of financlal assets (Note 33 Risk Management, section b, Credit risk}

IFRS 9 expected credit loss model includes three stages, i.e. three levels of credit risk, whereby the financial
asset moves through stages as It changes its credit quality.

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Expected loas 12-month pericd Lifeime period Lifetime period
Criterion for Delay =30 days Delay 231 days <90 Delay >90 days
grouping and Client Is not In default days le.
determining risk  on any basls Deterioration of client's Cllent Is in default on any
levels position basls

Client Is not in defaulton POCI assets which are

any basls defaulted

Significant Increase In

credit risk (SICR)

Purchased or originated

credit impalred ("POCI")

assets which are not

— defaulted
Derecognition of financlal assefs

Financlal assets are derecognised if the following criteria are met:

i Contractual rights to cash flows of financial assets expire, or

i The Bank transfers financlal assets under conditions that meet the criteria for derecognition,

When transferring a financial asset, it is necessary to estimate the extent to which the risks and repossession
of ownership of that financlal asset are maintained, In that case:

iii. If substantially all the risks and rewards of cwnershlp of the financial asset are transferred,

financial assets are derecognised.

Iv. If all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are not transferred or retalned
substantially, the financlal asset Is derecognised if the control over such financial asset is also

transferred.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
{all amounts are expressed In thousand BAM, unless otherwise stated)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financlal Instruments {continued)
Termination of recognifion of financlal assets due fo significant changes In contractual terms

Bank's credit operations may change the conftractual terms of a financial asset sither as a result of
negotiations to adapt to changed market conditions or to prevent financlal difficulties of a client, i.e. to
maximize the abllity to pay if the client is already in financlal difficulties.

As a result of the change in the terms or modification of the contractual cash flows of a financial asset, the
deracognition of that financial asset and recognition of new, changed financial assets may occur. The Bank
has defined a number of derecognition criteria that qualitatively or quantitatively determine whether a change
In contractual terms of financial assets is sufficlent to meet the conditions for derecognition.

Significant modifications result in derecognition of the original financlal assset and Initial recognition of the
modified financlal asset as a new financial instrument. They include the foliowing events:

a) Change of contractual conditions leading to change of the other party te the contract

b) Change of the currency of the contract (unless the change is a result of using the embedded option In the
otiginal contract with the pre-agreed terms of the change, or If the new currency Is linked to the original
currency);

c) the introduction of contracts that do not meet non-SPPL; and eliminating contractual characteristics other
than SPPI.

Some criteria for derecognition differ depending on whether contract modifiers are applied to debtors facing
financlal difficulties. The application of certain modifications to debtors In financlal difficulties is not considered
significant because It Is aimed at improving the bank's prospect of recovering claims by adjusting the
repayment schedule under certain financial conditions of those debtors. On the other hand, such contractual
modifications that apply to executive debtors may be considered sufficiently impertant to justify derecognition,
as explained in more detail below,

From this perspective, the following criteria lead o derecognition, unless considered to be forbearance
measures, they are applied to clients in default or trigger for default:

- the repayment plan has been revised in such a way that the weighted residual maturity of assets is changed
by more than 100% and not less than two years In relation to the original asset;

= change in the time / amount of contractual cash flows resulting in the present value of medified cash flows
{discounted at the effective interest rate before modification) of more than 2% of the gross bock value of the
asset immediately before the change (cumulative assessment taking into account all medifications happened
in the last twelve months); or

- commercial bargaining Initlated by debtors seeking better terms as an alternative to refinancing, while there
is an option for early repayment / early termination and a sufficiently competitive refinancing market,
Furthermore, the costs the bormower would have had in case of early repayment / early termination of the
contract should be considered as low enough to refuse it. This cancellation period is rarely applied for credits
at Stage 2 and never in Stage 3.

If contractual modifications deemed to be forbearance measuras apply to clients In the default status or the
triggers for the default status se significant that they qualitatively estimate as abolishing original contractual
rights, result in derecognition.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
{all armounts are expressed In thousand BAM, unless otherwise staled)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financlal instruments {continued)

Termination of recognition of financial assefs due to significant changes In contractual terms
{continued)

Examples of such changes are:
- a new contract with substantially different terms was signed as part of the restructuring;

- consolidation of multiple original loans Into one with substantially different conditions; or transforming
revolving loans In non-revolving.

Amendmenis to contracts that result in the termination of recognition of original funds result in Initial
recognition of new financial resources. If the borrower Is late or If significant modification leads to default, then
the new asset will be treated as POCI.

if the borrower Is not In delay or If a significant modification does not result in default, the new asset recognized
after the derecognition of the original asset will be In Stage 1, For loans measured at amortized cost, the non-
amortized amount of fees / rates are shown as 'Net interest income' on the date of derecognlilon.

For financial assets measured at FVTPL, regardless of whether they are in delay, gains and losses from
deracognition are included in the same items of statement of profit or loss as their measurement result.

For debt instrument assets that are not measured at FVTPL and which are the subject of contractual
madifications that do not result in derecognition, the gross carrying amount of the asset Is reconclled with the
recognition of profit or loss from a change In profit or loss. Galn or loss of change Is equal to the difference
between the gross book value before the change and the present value of cash flows based on the modified
terms discounted at the original effective interest rate, In the statement of profit or loss, galn or loss on the
modification Is presented as “Interest income” if the change relates to financial assets at Stage 1. For financlal
assets at Stage 2 and 3 and POCI financial assets, gains or losses are presented as “Impairment losses
provisions”.

Financial assets — modification

In a situation where the renegotiation was driven by financial difficulties of the counterparty and inability to
make the originally agreed payments, the Bank compares the original and revised expected cash flows to
gssets whether the risks and rewards of the asset are substantially different as a result of the contractual
modification. If the risks and rewards do not change, the modified asset Is not substantially different from the
original asset and the modification does not result in derecognition. The Bank recalculates the gross carrying
amount by discounting the modified contractual cash flows by the original effective interest rate {or credit-
adjusted effective interest rate for POCI financial agsets), and recognises a mediflcation gain or loss in profit
or loss.

Payment holidays granted by the Bank In response to COVID-19 pandemic are treated contractual
medifications of the respective loans and advances. Thelr Impact on the gross carrying amount {modification
loss) is presented In profit or loss within Interest income {Note 19) and impairment loss on financial
instruments (Note 25).
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for the year ending 31 December 2021
(all armounts are expressed in thousand BAM, unless otherwise stated)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financlal Instruments (continued)
Financial assets — modification {continued)

If the modified terms are substantially different, the rights to cash flows from the original assst expire and the
Bank derecognises the original financlal asset and recognises a new asset at its fair value, The date of
renegotiation is considered to be the date of initial recognition for subsequent impairment calculation
purposes, including determining whether a SICR has occurred. The Bank also assesses whether the new
loan or debt instrument meets the SPPI criterion. Any difference between the cartying amount of the original
asset derecognised and fair value of the new substantially modified asset Is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecogniton of financial llabliities

The Bank derecognizes a financial liability when, and only when, the Bank's obligations have been released,
canceled or terminated.

Property and equipment, and Intangible assets

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreclation and any recognized accumulated
impairment losses. The purchase cost Includes the purchase price and all cosis direcily related to bringing
the asset into operating condition for its intended use. Current maintenance and repalrs, replacements and
improvements of minor Importance are expensed as Incurred.

Properties in the course of construction for supply or administrative purposes are carrled at cost, less any
recognised Impaitment loss. Cost Includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capltalised In accordance with the Bank's accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of properiy and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.

Depraclation is charged from the moment the fixed asset Is ready for its intended use. k Is calculated In the
basis of the estimated useful life of the asset, using the straight-line method as follows.

Intangible assets are measured initially at purchase cost and are amortised on a straight-line basls over their
estimated usseful lives.

Estimated useful lives were as follows:

2020 2021
Bulldings 33 - 50 years 33 — 50 years
Computers 5 years 5 years
Vehicles 6 years 6 years
Furniture and other office equipment 5—10years 5-10years
Intangible assets 5 years 5 years

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirernent of an asset is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive Income in the period they occur.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Property and equipment, and intanglble assets (continued)
Impairment

At each reporting period date, the Bank reviews the carrying amounts of Its property and equipment to
dstermine whether there Is any indication thet those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset Is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss {if any).

Recoverable amount is the greater of net selling price and value In use, In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to thelr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset Is estimated to be less than its camying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset Is reduced to its recoverable amount. Impaiment losses are recognized as an expense Immediately,
uniess the relevant asset Is land or bulidings other than investment property carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the iImpairment loss Is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an Impaiment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset Is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the Increased camying amount does not exceed the camying
amount that would have been determined had no Impairment loss been recognized for the asset In prior
years. A reversal of an impalment loss is recognized as income immediately, unless the relevant asset s
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the Impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
increase.

Repoasessed coliaterals

Repossessed collaterals are financial and non-financial assets that the Bank acquires In the process of ioan
repayment. These collaterals are inltially recognized at lower value of net book value of respactive recelvables
or estimated value (valuation performed by extemal appralser) less expected costs to sell. If the net book
value of the respective receivable at the time of repossession is zero, repossessed collaterals are recognized
at the amount of BAM 1.

These assets have to be subsequently regulary assessed by external appraisers, except when its book value
equals BAM 1. In case these assets are not sold in the period of 3 years following repossession, their book
value has to be decreased to the amount of 1 BAM, as prescribed by the FBA.,

Employee benefits

On behalf of Its employees, the Bank pays personal income teax and contributions for pension, disabllity, health
and unemployment insurance, on and from salaries, which are calculated as per the set legal rates during the
course of the year on the gross salary. The Bank pays the tax and contributions in the favour of the institutions
of the Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina {on federal and cantonal level), In addition, transport allowances,
meal allowances and vacation bonuses are paid In accordance with the local legislation. These expenses are
recognized in the statement of profit or loss and comprehansive Income In the perled in which the salary
expense is incurred.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Employee benefits (continued)
Retirement severance payments

The Bank makes provision for retirement severance payments In the amount of elther 6 average salaries of
the employee disbursed by the Bank or 6 average salaries of the Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina as
in the most recent published report by the Federal Statistics Bureau, depending on what is more favourable
to the employse.

The cost of retirement severance payments are racognized when eamed.
Foreign currency translation

Transactions in curmencies other than Bosnla and Herzegovina BAM are initially recorded at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities are franslated at the
rates prevalling on the reporting period date. Non-monetary items carried at falr value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslatad at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Nen-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost In a forelgn currency are net retranslated.
Proflte and losses arising on translation are included in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the perlod.

The Bank values Its assets and liabllities by middle rate of the CBBH valld at the reporting perlod date. The
principal rates of exchange set forth by the Central Bank and used In the preparation of the Bank's statement
of financial position at the reporting dates were as follows:

31 December 2021 1 EUR = BAM 1,95583 1 USD = BAM 1,725631
31 December 2020 1 EUR = BAM 1,95583 1USD = BAM 1,5925686
Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Bank has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, It is probable that the Bank will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligaticn.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settie the present
obligation at the reporting perlod date, taking Into account the risks and uncertainies surmounding the
obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, lts
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. Provisions are released only for such expenditure
in respect of which provisions are recognized at Inception, If the outflow of ecenomic beneflts to settle the
obligations Is no longer probable, the provision is reversed.

Equity and reserves
Share capital

Share capital represents the nominal value of paid-in ordinary and preferred shares and is denominated in
BAM, in nominal value.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
(all amounts are expressed in thousand BAM, unless otherwise stated)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Falr value reserve

Falr value reserves comprises changes In fair value of financlal assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

Retained earnings

Profit for the periad after appropriations to owners and allocations to other reserves are transferred to retained
eamings.

Dividends

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized as a liability in the perlod in which they are approved by the
Bank'’s shareholders.

Earnings per share
The Bank publishes baslc and diluted eamings per share (EPS) data.

Baslc EPS Is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

There were no dilution effects during 2020 and 2021.
New and amended standards adopted by the Bank

The Bank has applled the following new and revised standards and amendments, and interpretations, for the
first time for their annual reporting pericd commencing 1 January 2021:

e Covid-18-Related Rent Concessions — amendments to IFRS 16
» Interest rate benchmark (IBOR) reform — phase 2 amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4
and IFRS 16

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised In prier perlods and are
not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

Standards Issued but not yet effective

Certaln new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 31
December 2021 reporting perlods and have not been early adopted by the Bank:

e 8Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Assoclate or Joint Venture - Amendmentis
to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (issued on 11 September 2014 and effective for annual periods beginning on
or after a date to be determined by the IASB)

o |FRS 17: “Insurance Contracts” (issued on 18 May 2017) and Amendments to IFRS 17 and an
amendment to IFRS 4 (issued on 25 June 2020) — all effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023

« Classlification of liabilities as current or non-current — Amendments to IAS 1 (issued on 23 January
2020 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023)

¢ Proceeds before Intended use, Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract, Reference to the
Conceptual Framework — narrow scope amendments to IAS 16, |AS 37 and IFRS 3, and Annual
Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 — amendments fo IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and IAS 41 (issued
on 14 May 2020 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022)
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
(all amounts are expressed in thousand BAM, unless otherwise stated)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

« Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement Z: Disclosure of Accounting policies (issued on
12 February 2021 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023)

o Amendments to IAS 8: Definition of Accounting Estimates (issued on 12 February 2021 and effective
for annual perlods beginning on or after 1 January 2023)

e Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions — additional amendments to IFRS 16 {issued on 31 March 2021
and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021)

» Deferred tax related to assets and llabilities arising from a single transaction — Amendments to IAS
12 (issued on 7 May 2021 and effective for annual perlods beginning on or after 1 January 2023).

Those standards are not expected to have a material Impact on the Bank in the current or future reporting
periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Bank's accounting palicles, which are described In Note 3, the Management Is
required o make Judgments, estimates and make assumptions about the carrylng amounts of asseis and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other socurces. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant, Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basls. Revisions o accounting
estimates are recognized in the pericd In which the estimate is revised If the revision affects anly that period
or In the perlod of the revision and future periods If the revision affects both current and future perlods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertalnty
at the reporting period date, that have a significant risk of causing a materlal adjustment to the camying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financlal year.

SPPI agsessment

The assessment of whether the contractual cash flows of financial assets lead to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI} are subject to the application of significant judgments based on
IFRS 9 guidance. These judgments are crucial to the IFRS 9 classification and measurement process as they
determine whether the asset must be measured at FVTPL or, depending on the business model estimate, at
amortized cost or at FVOCI. When taking into account the specificities of loans In the Bank's business,
significant areas of judgement are early repayment fees, project financing loans, and benchmark credit tests
with critical interest rate clauses.

The most critical area of estimation of SPPI in the Bank's operations are loans with critical interest rate
clauses. Interest rate measurement refers to floating rate financial instruments where:

o the reference rate (such as Euribor) differs from the rate of conversion rates

o the interest rate is fixed before the start of the interest period

o fime lags arise from average rates in previous periods

¢ or a combination of the above

Sparkasse Bank dd BiH 28



Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
{all amounts are expressed in thousand BAM, unless otherwise stated)

4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

SPPI assessment (continued)

To this end, the Bank has developed what is called benchmark test to assess whether a critical interest rate
clause could result in contractual (undiscounted) cash fiows that are significantly different from the initlal
contract. In additlon to the characterstics of critical interest clauses, the conditions of this benchmark test
correspond to the assets in the test.

Forfunds with critical Interest rate clauses that arise only from previous and average rates (l.e. no discrepancy
stemming from a period that differs from the frequency of conversion), the SPP{ compliance Is considered to
be fulfilled on the basis of a qualitative estimate if the time gap between fixing the rate and beginning of the
interest rate period does not excesd one month,

A quantitative benchmark test Is performed on the initial recognition of the contract. The threshold of
Importance for the cumulative cash flow ratio, the quantitative threshold of materiality is set at 5%. If the
materiality threshalds are exceeded, the benchmark test Is not passed and the financlal asset must be
measured at falr value through profit or loss.

Following fransition to IFRS 9 for loans and debt securities, a benchmark test was carrled out in relation to
the interest rates at thelr Inltial recognition. All loans with the characteristics of the critlcal Interest rate clauses
have passed the test and therefore there was no need to measure the loan at FVTPL. No significant margin
is expected for new contracts with critical interest rate clauses that failed to meet the benchmark test as a
result of the preventive activitles undertaken during the project implementation of IFRS 9 with the aim of
reducing the amount of loans to be measured by FVTPL.

Business mode/ assessment

For each financial asset that Is matched with SPPI at initial recognition, the Bank must assess whether It Is
part of the business model in which the asset is held for the purpose of collecting contractual cash flows,
collecting contractual cash flows and sales, or being heid in other business models. As a consequence, the
critical aspect In differentlating business models is the frequency and importance of selling property in the
appropriate business model. Since asset allocation to business models is based on an initial estimate, cash
flows may occur differently than originally expected in subsequent periods, and it may seem that a different
measurement method Is applicable. In accordance with IFRS 8, such subsequent changes generally do not
lead to reclassification or corection of previous period etrors in relation to existing financlal assets. New
information on how to make cash flows can, however, point to the fact that the business model, and thus the
measurement method, are changing for new property.

In the Bank, sales due to increased credit risk, short-term assets, short-term sales caused by a non-
performing event (such as changes In regulatory or tax environment, large internal reorganization or business
combinations, severe liquidity crises, etc,) contrary to the business model of contractual cash flows. Other
types of sales conducted in the business model that are held for collection are evaluated retroactively, and If
they exceed certain quantitative thresholds or, when deemed necessary due to new expectaticns, the Bank
conducts a prospective test. If the result was that the book value of assets expected to be sold in the expected
tarm of the current business model portfolio, for reasons ather than those above, exceeds 10% of the book
value of the portfolio, any new acquisitions would have been classified into another business model.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
{all amounts are exprsad In thousand BAM, unless otherwise staﬂi)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
Koy sources of estimation uncertainty (continuad)
Impalrment of financial Instruments

The expected cradit loss impalrment model Is inherently based on the estimate, as it requires an assessment
of significant credit risk increases and measurement of expected credit losses without providing detailed
guidance. With regard to a significant increase in credit risk, the Bank has established special valuation rules
that conslst of qualltative Informatlon and quantitative thresholds.

Another area of complexity relates to the establishment of groups of similar assets when credit risk
deterioration has to be assessed on a collective basis before specific information is available at the level of
an Individual instrument. Measuring expected credit losses involves complex models relying on historical
statistics of probabliity of default and loss rate In case of default, extrapolation in case of lack of data, individual
cash flow estimates and probabllities of different scenarios including future information,

Detalled explanations on the identlfication of signlflcant Increases In credit risk, including collective estimatlen,
estimation techniques used to measure 12-month and expected credit losses and expectations, as well as
the definition of default, are disclosed in Note 33 Risk Management, section b, Credit risk.

ECL measurement

Due to signlificant and rapid changes In the economic environment, the Bank decided to adjust the approach
to measure ECL for the loans Issued to micro, corporate and retail clients. The management performed a
comprehensive portfolio analysis and had identified groups of borrowars, for which sufficient reasonable and
supportable Information for the ECL measurement is avallable on the industry basls.

Fallowing criteria for stage overlay were applied:
s heat-map” criteria (Industry heat-maps),
s the values of 1Y probability of default and the client's request for COVID relief measures
» client's segment

Industry heat-map:

o Critical industries - Business Cyclicals, Hotels, Lelsure, Other, Passenger Transportation

s High risk Industries — Clething & Footwear, Gaming

e Moderate risk industries — Agriculture, Chemicals, Consumer Electronlcs, Dealers, Education,
Electrical, F&B production, Fumniture, Healthcare & Social, Infrastructure, Mechanical, Media, Metals,
OEM, OES, Qil & Gas, Packaging, Passenger Transportation, Pulp & Paper, Rallway Manufacturers,
Repair, Road Freight, Technology, Wholesale, Wholesale & Rental

» Low riskindustres - Building materials, Bulldings construction, DIY, Engineering, Finishing, Logistics,
Telecommunication, Utilities, Wood.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
{all amounts are expressed in thousand BAM, unless otherwise sta_ted)

4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
Key sources of estimation uncertainty {continued)
ECL measurement (continued)

In more details, the folowing rules and/or combination of rules were applled when significant increase of credit
risk was assessaed on industry, PD and moratorla status basis and exposures fransferred to Stage 2:

» Critlcal Industry based on the heat-map

» High risk industry and the application for COVID relief measures,

» High risk industry, no application for COVID relief measures, but 1YPD higher than 250 bp,

» Moderate risk industry, application for COVID relief measures and 1YPD higher than 250 bp,

e For Pl porifolio, the criteria is the application for COVID relief measure nd 1YPD higher than 250 bp;
howaver the nule for PPls was abolished on November 2021 basad on the recovery of the mentioned
portfolio

As of 31 december 2021, 52,803 thousand BAM of exposure (both on balance and off-balance} was in
Stage 2 as a result of the above mentioned criteria. Such approach applied by the management resulted In
the Increase of ECL for the cllents of BAM 2,342 thousand, out of which BAM 2,176 thousands for corporate
portfolle and BAM 1686 thousand for micro portfolio.

Customer relief measures

The Bank Implemented relief measures stipulated In the declsions passed in 2020 by the FBA ih response to
the spread of COVID-19,

The last decision was issued on 17 December 2021 based on which borrowers that are negatively affected
by the pandemic and meet certain conditions can continue applying for reliefs in the form of reprogramming
and reflnancing with approval of grace period of six months and corresponding extenslon of maturity so that
the debtor's montly Installments do not exceed those from original annulty plan. The Bank concluded that
gensrally such applicaticns, provide evidence of a significant increase in credit rigk of the loan, unless
observable mitigating factors are identified. Generally, &ll loans grantad within the Industry heat map were
subject to stage overlay criteria which, if met, were considered as loans with significant increase in credit risk.
Loans to individuals and legal entlites who applled and were approved for the COVID relief measure as of 31
December 2021 amounted to BAM 171,603 thousand, out of which only BAM 100 thousand has still active
measures as of December 2021,

From above mentioned, loans to individuals who applied for the rellef and were approved during 2021 and
2020 amounted to BAM 44,416 thousand as of 31 December 2021, As of 31 December 2021, ne exposures
with active COVID relief measures were present.

Loans to legal entlties who applied for the relief and were approved during 2020 and 2021 amounted to BAM
127,187 thousand as of 31 December 2021, out of which only BAM 100 thousand with active relief measures
as of that date,
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
(all amounts are expressed In thousand BAM, uniess otherwise stated)

4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
Key sources of estimation uncertainty {continued)
Useful lives of property and equipment

As described in Note 3 above, the Bank reviews the estimated useful lives of property and equipment at the
end of each annual reporting period,

IFRS 16

The Bank determines Iincremental borrowing rate (“IBR") based on the rates that the Bank can obtain
financing if the Bank decides to buy the properly. When recognizing a new contract, the Bank always take
the latest interest rats in accordancs with the duration of the lease. In determining IBR the Bank adds 0,30%
on the determinated variable interest in order to reach to fix interest rate which is used for discounting the
future cashflows,

Currently Bank does not have contracts that have an indefinite duration and to treat them in accordance with
IFRS18.

Litigations

Bank's Legal Department makes Individual assessment of all court cases and makes provisions on a portfollo
basls.

As stated In Note 18, the Bank has reserved BAM 890 thousand (2020: BAM 1,400 thousand), which
Management estimates as sufficient.

Legal cases are classified on the basis of a reasoned assessment by lawyers and / or Bank's Legal
Department on the success of the dispute in question, in accordance with the criterla set out In the Instruction
on Litigation.

All passive court proceedings are classified into the following categories or sk groups:
e No nisk - Includes passive litigation in which it is determined that there is no rigk of logs on the part of
the Bank
» Low level of risk
o Medium degree of risk
o High level of risk

Provisions for employee benefits

As described in Note 3, In the paragraph named Employee benefits, provision for employee benefits are
calculated on the basis of an Independent actuarial report on the implementation of IAS 19 — Employee
benefits.

DefYered tax assets and Habliltes

Deffered tax assets and ltabllities are racognized In cases when income or expenss is included in accounting
profitin one period, and in taxable profit in ancther period - in accordance with the Law on Corporate Income
Tax ("CPT") Law (Article 14} and the Rulsbook of the CPT Law FBIH. The most significant deferred tax assets
or liabilities are non-tax deductible expenses / revenues based on the value adjustment of assets in the
statement of financial position (regulatory provisions on credit rigk levels 1 and 2). In this case, the Bank also
refers to the CPT Law of FBiH, making adjustments to the tax balance on a net basis, Ie. Increase the tax
base in case of higher expenses, ie reduce the tax base In case of higher income, while at the same time
recognizing tax assets / liabllities as 10% of these amounts.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
(all amounts are expressed in thousand BAM, unless otherwise stated)

4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
Key sources of estimation uncertainty {(continuead)

Falr value of financial Instruments

As described In Note 33, the Management use their judgment in selecting an appropriate valuation technique
for financial instruments not quoted in an active market. Valuation technigques commonly used by market
practitioners are applied. Financial instruments, other than loans and recelvables, are valued using a
discounted cash flow analysis based on assumptions supported, where possible, by observable market prices
or rates, The estimation of fair value of unlisted shares Includes some assumptions not supported by
observable market prices or rates.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
(all amounts are expressed in thousand BAM, unless otherwise stated)

8. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2020 2021
Cash on hand 127 418 165,708
Cash balances at central banks 173.724 203,907
Of which obligatory reserve with the CBBH 138.219 95204
Impairment (Note 25) -174 =204
Cash balances at central banks after Impaimant 173,550 203,703
Other demand deposits to credtt Institutions 30,633 34,033
Impairment (Note 25} 83 =143
Other demand depcsits to credit institutions after Impalrement 30.550 33,880
Cash and cash balances 331,519 433,391
6. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2020 2021
Equity Instruments 111 127
Equlty Instruments 11 127

investments in equity securitles, except for investments in associates, are classified at fair value through profit
or loss (FVTPL). The Bank has investments in SWIFT, Belgium In form of stakes. Falr value Is calculated at

the level of the Erste Group and change In fair value in 2621 amounting to BAM 16 thousand.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
(all amounts are expressed in thousand BAM, unless otherwise staled)

7. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(CONTINUED)

2020 2021
Governments bonds - Federation Bosnia and Herzegovina and Republika Srpska 85,294 88.260
Government of Republic of Austria ~ bonds 23,660 23.027
Republic of Slovenia - bonda 18.911 18.204
Kingdom of Belgium - bonds 15,180 14622
Govemment of Republic of Croatia — bonds 9,921 9,877
Republic of France - bonda 10171 9,915
Total dabt securities 163.137 163.705

The Bank did not invest in freasury notes in 2021, Interest rate {yield to maturity) on bonds ranged from
0,05% to 4,93% p.a. during 2021.

Expected Maturity:
2020 2021
= no more than 12 months after the reporting pericd 5167 11,596
- more than 12 months after the reporting period 157,870 152 108
Total debt securitiss 163,137 163,705
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ending 31 December 2021
(all amounts are expressed In thousand BAM, unless otherwise stated)

8. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST (CONTINUED)

Movement of gross carrying amount of financlal assets at amortised cost

Stage1  Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total

Loans and advances at amortised cost
Gross carying amount as at 31 Decembar 2020 1,003,402 176.624 59,770 1,052 1,241,448
New assets originated or purchased 503,439 - - 867 504,206
Aasets derecognised or repald {(excluding write off) 57,994 -5,886 569 67 -85,016
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 -1,687 1,687 - - -
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 -105 - 105 - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 . 44 44 - -
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - 14 =14 - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 1,476 -1,476 - - -
Amount written off - - 24,234 - 24,234
Changes to contracts that did not change the stage <323 822 3439 22,241 <108 342732

_At 31 December 2021 1,124,700 174,249 60,929 2344 1,362211

Stage 1 Stage2 Stage3 POCI Total

" Loans and advances at amortised cost
Gross carrylng amount as at 31 Decembar 2019 1,073.027 51,067 75.571 1,217 1,200,942
New assets originated or purchased 412,807 - 444 413,351
Assets derecognised or repald (excluding wite off) -269,978 ~11,034 6,056 =224 -287,204
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 «156,287 156,207 - - -
Tranefer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 8,127 - 8,127 - -
Transfar from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - -5,071 5,871 - -
Transfar from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - -592 592 - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 6,478 6,478 - - -
Amount written off - - -18,685 -39 -18,724
Charnges to contracts that did not change the stege -54.608 -8.885 5,748 184 -66,827
At 31 Decomber 2020 1.003,402 176.624 50,770 1,652 1,241,448
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
{all amounts are expressed in thousand BAM, unless otherwise stated)

9. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Property and aquipment
a) Purchase value
Property and equipment and investment proparties
Land and Cffice ITassets  Assstunder Property and Inveatment
bulidings equipment (hardwars) constraction equipment properly
and (AUC)
Installations /
other fixed
assets
1 January 2020 31,260 14,000 4,865 - 50,128 4,268
Additions (+} - - - 1,127 1127 -
Sales and sxpcnses (=) - -767 -310 - -1.077 -
Transfer from AUC (+/-) 9 783 197 -088 - -
Reclassification i+/-] 2.979 - - - 2978 2879
Balance at 31
December 2020 34,248 14,016 4,752 138 53.154 1,289
Addltions (+) - - - 1,295 1,285 -
Sales and mipenses (-} -13 -380 -7 - 484 -
Transfer from AUC (+/-| 130 853 286 -1,268 - -
Balance st 31
December 2021 34,365 14,489 4,967 164 53,085 1,289
b) Accumulated depreclation
Property and equipment and Investment properties
Land and Office Tassets  Assetunder Property and Investment
bulidings equipment (hardware)  constraction equipment property
and {AUC)
instaliations /
other fixed
assels
January 1, 2020 8,536 8,711 -3.246 = 16,483 =771
Depreciation (-) 504 -1,306 543 - -2,853 58
Sales and expenses (+) - 701 310 1,011 -
Reclassification {+/=} 593 = = -583 583
Impeirments (-) -181 - - -181 -
Balance at 31
December 2020 =7,933 9,216 =3.47% - -20,728 ~204
Depreciation (-} -804 -1.238 440 2,482 28
Sales and expenses (+) 10 325 71 406 i
Balance at 31
December 2021 8,727 10,229 3,848 - -22,604 =280
¢} Book value
Property and equipment and investment properties
Land and Office ITassets  Assetunder Property and Inveatment
bulldings equipment (hardware)  constraction equipment property
and (AUC)
Installations /
other fixed
assets
Balance at 31
_December 2020 26,315 4,700 1,273 188 82426 1.025
Balance at 31
Descember 2021 25,638 4,260 1119 164 31.181 988
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
(all amounts are expressed in thousand BAM, unless otherwise stated)

9. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(CONTINUED)

Investment property relates to business premises (floors) in the Central office building in Sarajevo rented and
net used by the Bank. On the basis of an investment property, in 2021 the Bank generated a total income
from rents in the amount of BAM 307 thousand — Note 23 (2020 — BAM 314 thousand), while other operating
income from operating lease for the year 2021 amounted to BAM 37 thousand (2020 — BAM 13 thousand).
Fair value of investment properties as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 does not significantly differ from the
carrying value of the bullding during 2021 and 2020,

intangible assets

a) Purchase value

Acquired Other (licenses, Asset under Total

aoftware patents, ate.) conatraction

(AUC)
1 January 2020 8,040 6,015 83 14,140
Additions (+) = - 2966 2966
Sales and expenses (-) K] - =26 -35
Reclassification (+/-) 1,773 810 2,683 -
Balance at 31 Decamber 2020 9,804 8.025 342 17,071
Additions {+) = - 1,435 1,435
Sales and expenses (-) -216 - - -218
Transfer from AUC (+/-) 1,705 52 -1,757 =
Balance at 31 December 2021 11,203 8,977 20 18,280

b} Accumulated amortization

Assst under

Acquired Cther (licenses, constraction
software patents. etc.) {AUC) Total
1 January 2020 £,580 -3.978 - =10.558
Depraciation (-) -688 =803 - -1,481
Sales and expenses (+) 9 - . 9
Reclasslification (+/-) - - - -
Balance at 31 December 2020 7,259 -4,781 - -12,040
Depreciation {-) -386 -769 - =1.666
Sales and expenses (+) 14 - - 11
Balance at 31 December 2021 £.134 -5,550 - -13.684

Book values

Acquired Other (licenses, Asset under Total

software patents, etc.) censtraction

(AUC)
Balance at 31 December 2020 2,545 2144 M2 5,031
Balance at 31 December 2021 3,159 1,427 20 4,606
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
(all amounts are expressed in thousand BAM, unless otherwise stated)

9. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Right of use assets

a) Purchase value Land and buildings

1 January 2020 3,220
Additions (+) 2,337
Sales and expenses (+) -908

Reclassification (+/-) -

Balance at 31 December 2020 4,649
Additions (+) 1,262
Sales and expenses (+) -644

Reclassification (+/-) -

Balance at 31 December 2021 5,267

b) Accumulated depreciation

1 January 2020 -892
Depreciation (-) 1,126
Sales and expenses (+) 584
Balance at 31 December 2020 1,434
Depreciation (-) 1,128
Sales and expenses (+) 602

Impairments (-) -

Balance at 31 December 2021 -1,960

c) Book values

Balance at 31 December 2020 3,215

Balance at 31 December 2021 3,307
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
{all amounts are expressed in thousand BAM, unless otherwise steted)

10. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
The Bank's Investments In assoclates are as follows:

Name of the company 2020 2021
Sparkasse Leasing doo Sarajevo (49%) 807 607
Total 807 807

For all associates the reporting date is 31 December. The summary of financial information on joint companles

is presentad below:

2020 2021
Total assets 88.158 107.887
Total liabilities -78.410 $9.215
Net assets 7,748 8,652
The changes In Investments in assoclates can be presented as follows:
Cost method
2020 2021
Balance at 1 January 585 807
Increase In sk provision 12 -
Balance at 31 December 607 607
11. OTHER ASSETS
2020 2021
Repozsessed collaterals 8.392 4,076
Fees and commisslon recelvables 3,620 4,391
Authorized exchanys office receivables 2.190 2516
Accrued Income - 1,600
Domestic transactions recelvables 708 818
Pald In advance expenses 625 781
Consumables 337 384
Recelvables from employeas 93 247
Inventaries 132 108
Western unlon receivables 95 92
VAT recelvables - 1
Cther asseta a78 1.117
Total other assets before impsirment losses 17,168 16,132
Less: Impalment losses -11,026 -7.504
Net other asssets 6,142 8.628
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021

(all amounts are expressed in thousand BAM, unless otherwise staled)

11. OTHER ASSETS (CONTINUED)}
Impalrment of other assets - —
From  Adoption of Additions Derscognition Write-off To
regulatory  (Increase In (release of and Sales
raquirements provision) provision)
= Decision on
Credit Risk
Management
and
Dstermining
Expected
Credit
Losses (Note
2a)
1 January 31 December
2021 2021
Cther assets -2.655 - -2.457 1.880 244 -2 988
Repossessed
colleterals -7.809 - 550 - 4,470 -3.979
Small inventory -A72 - 86 - - =537
Total «11,026 - -1,072 1,880 4,714 7,504
From  Adoption of Addlitions Derecognition Write-off To
regulatory  (Increase In (reloase of
roquirements provision) provision)
= Daclslon on
Credit Risk
Management
and
Determining
Credit
Losses (Note
2q) _
1 January Docz;lnhor
2020 2020
Other assets -2,850 52 -2.664 2397 514 -2.655
Repossessad collaterals -4.188 - 4474 - 763 -7.899
Small Inventory - 523 — - - 51 - 472
Total 7,561 52 -7.138 2448 1.277 -11,026
12. DEPOSITS FROM BANKS
2020 2021
Overnight deposits 23730 8179
Term deposits 122918 84101
Deposlis from banks 146,848 92 280
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
(all amounts are expressed in thousand BAM, unless otherwise staled)

13. BORROWINGS

2020 2021
Europsan Investment Bank (EIB) — average welghted Interest rata per drawn instalment is
1.718% 11,075 4,239
European Bank for Reconstruction and Development (EBRD) — welghted average Interest
rate 0.658% p.a. 17.882 11.781
The European Fund For Southeast Europe (EFSE)— weighted average Interest rate 1,1%
Eizl.:lllﬂaa for long-term loans — subordinated debt Stelermarkiche bank und Sparkassen AG, - —
maturity on 28 March 2027 at the rate of 3.9% 0,878 0.870
Total 35,836 27,833
Expected Maturity:
2020 2021
- no more than 12 months after the reporting peried 13.098 9,534
= more than 12 months aftar the reporting perlod 25,740 18,301
Total 38,838 27.835
14. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS
2020 2021
Current accounts / overnight depoalts 888,917 839,933
Transactlon accounts 883,917 839.933
General governments 50,318 53.696
Other financlal corporations 16,373 20,598
Non-financial corporations 243,150 2;9823
Households 379.076 466.816
Term deposliis 584 843 689,284
Deposits with agreed maturity 584,843 689,284
Savings deposits 501,824 624,244
Other financial corporations 21,509 31,129
Non-financlal corporations 155,447 243 985
Households 324,868 3489.130
Transaction accounts £3.019 65,040
General govemments 36,708 10,686
Other financlal corporations 808 541
Nor-financlal corporations 18,926 24918
Households 28,487 28,895
Deposits from customers 1,273,760 1,529,217
General govemments 87.117 84.302
Other financlal corporations 38 690 52.26?
Non-financlal corporations 417 623 567.7;
Houssholds 730.430 844 841

Average interest rates on total client deposits at the end of 2021 amounted to 0.53% p.a and are lower
compared to the previous year (2020 0.62%) by 9 bp. Average interest rates on long-term client deposits
decreased from 1.33% (2020) to 1.21% in 2021, while average interest rates on shori-term deposits had a
decreasing trend from 0.57% (2020) to 0.47% (2021). Avista and avista saving accounts avg Interest rate

decreased from 0.048% to 0.022% by 2.8 bp.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
(all amounts are expressed in thousand BAM, unless otherwise stated)

15. LEASE LIABILITIES

2020 2021
_ Leage liabllitles 3,145 3,344
2020 2021
Maturity analysia
- lesa than one year 1.552 886
- one to five years 1.526 2322
- more than five years 67 38
Total 3,145 3,344
Lease llabiktes
2020 2021
Current 1,662 888
Non-current 1.583 2,358

The bank rents - two types of real estate, buslness premises and land. Leases are negotiated on an individual
basls and contaln a wide range of different conditions (Including cancellation and prolongation), Main
characteristics of leases contracts:
¢ Right-of-use assets for owner-cccupied contract last 5 years with a notice period of 3 menths and
with the option of drafting a contract if both parties agree. Lease payments is made monthly in a fixed
amount defined by the contract.
e Right-of-use assets for buildings are coniracted mainly for perlod of & years with optlon of
prolongation. Lease payments are mostly made monthly In a fixed amount defined by the contract.

Leases do not impose any apecific contractual provislons, but leased assets cannot be used as collateral for
the purpose of borrowing funds. Future cash outflows to which the Bank as lesses Is potentially exposed, and
which are not reflected in the measurement of the lease llabllity, arlse from the extension and cancellation
options (Note 4),

The Bank does not provide any guaranteed residual value.
Interest expenses on [ease liabilities for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to 64 thousand BAM.
Short-term leases

Short-term leases and expenses are recognized on a straight-line basis over the reporting period. Expenses
relating to leases of low value items for which the recogniion exemptlon Is applled for 2024 Is 688 thousand
BAM, and in 2020 650 thousand BAM.

Amounts recognised for the reporting period

The following amounts are recognised in profit or loss:

2020 2021

Interest expensea on leass liabilities (Included In finance expenses) a4 64
Expense relating to leases of low-value assgets that are not short-lerm leases (included in

personne! expenses, other administrative expanses and depraciation expanses) 850 888

684 752
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
(all amounts are expressed in thousand BAM, unless otherwise slated)

15. LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
The following amounts are recognised in the statement of cash flows:

2020 2021

Cash outflow for leases — within financing activities
Principal 1.437 2.967
Interest 44 684
Termination penaily 243 36
Cash outflow for leases — within cperaling activities 850 688
9,084 0,683

16. PROVISIONS
2020 2021
Long-term employee provisions 1.161 1,242
Pending Iegal issues and tax litigation 1,400 880
Commltments and guarantees glven 2,168 2,334
Allowance for credit losses for commitmenis and financial guerantees In Stage 1 1141 1.753
Allowance for credif losses for commitments and financial guarantees In Stage 2 999 576
Allowance for credif losses for commitmenis and financlal guarantees In Stage 3 28 5
Other provisions 4,366 5217
Provisions 9.084 9,683
Long-term provisions for employses

2020 20214
Present value of long-term provislons for employee benefits, 01 January 1,008 1,151
Cost of sarvices (Note 24) 103 64
Interest expense 42 27
Payments - -
Prasent value of Iong-hn'n provisions for smployee benefits, Decomber 31 1.451 1.242
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021

(all amounts are expressed in thousand BAM, unless otherwise stated)

16. PROVISIONS (CONTINUED)

Other provisions (except long-term provisions for employess)

Cthers and

From Increase Derecognition Uss To
1 January 31 Decomber
2021 2021
Pending Legal proceedings 1,400 208 -488 -320 880
Other provision 4,365 8,282 7413 3 5217
Total 5.765 8,580 =7.901 =317 8.107
Adoption of
regulatory
requirement Others
From D.gll!'ll;ma :: Increase Derecognition and Use To
Determining
ECL (Note 2a)
- |
1 ";n";o"v December
2020
Pending Lagal praceadings 1,283 - 118 - -1 1.400
Commitments and guarantees
_gliven outside IFRS 8 2461 883 8.103 -1.170 -12 4,365
Total 3.744 983 8.221 =7,170 -13 5,765

Contingencles and commitments

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank enters Intc credit related commitments, which are recorded in
off-balance shest accounts and primarlly include guarantees, letters of credit and undrawn loan commitments.

2020 2021

Granted but undrawn loans 212,908 248,052
Performance guarantees 92,388 118.256
Fayment guarantees 61.921 62,864
Acreditives 505 2354
Total 357,702 432,526
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
{all amounts are expressed in thousand BAM, urfess otherwise staled)

16. PROVISIONS (CONTINUED)

As of 31 December 2021, the provisions for employee benefits represent unused vacation days and
severance and retirement severance payments, and were determined using the projected credit unit. In order
to make actuarial estimates, following assumptions were used:

» Demographic assumptions on future characteristice of employees {mortality, employse fluctuation
rate):

- Average mortality rate 0,99% (2020: 0,98%)
- Average fluctuation rate 1,22% (2020: 1,35%)

¢ Financial assumptions (discount rate, wage levels, expected wage growth):
- Discount rate 4,0% (2020: 4,0%)

-  Expected wage growth rate of 1,0% {wage growth rate is determined compared to the
movements of average salarles in FBIH and RS, movement of salarles In the Bank and Bank's
expectations about salarles In the future perlod. There were no changes In this assumption
compared to the previous year),

17. OTHER LIABILITIES

2020 2021
Liabliities towards suppliers 3.783 3.704
Liabliities for unallocated payments 872 1.610
Liabliities to banks 1.133 1.426
Liabilities towards employees 1.204 1.340
Deferrad Income and accrued expenses ;13 851
Operational risk commitments 489 464
Card business obligations 494 385
Uabilities for texes 72 168
Other llabllities 1.964 7,341
Total 10.544 17,089
18. SHARE CAPITAL
Shareholding structure as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 was as follows:
Noof  TERM w Moo oA %
‘000 ‘000
Stelermarkische Bank und Sparkassen
AG, Graz. Austrija 884,733 86.473 100 864.733 86,473 100
Total paid capital B64,733 86,473 100 864,733 86473 100

Share capltal is made up of 864,733 ordinary shares at nominal value of BAM 100.

Share premium represents accumulated posltive difference beiween nominal value and amount recsived for
issued shares.

The ultimate owner of the Bank is Erste Group Bank AG Vienna, Austria (“Erste Group™).
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Notes to the financial statements
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19. NET INTEREST INCOME

2020 2021
Interest and other simlilar Income
Financlal assets at amortised cost 652,574 56,687
Credit inatibutions 117 4
General governments 108 163
Other financial corporations 215 288
Non-financial corporations 20,640 21 H
Households 32.094 34615
of which unwinding (Nots 8) -85 -104
Financlal assets measured at fair value through othar comprehensive income 2131 2125
Total Interest and other simlilar Income 54, 705 58,712
interest expenses and simlilar expenses
Financlal liabilities at amortised cost £.797 8,380
Interast expsnees 9,797 8,380
Total Interest expenses and similar sxpenses 2,797 9,380
Net interest income 44,908 49,332
Theraof: Interest-income on credit impaired finenclal assets 2.478 1,031
Thereof: Modification gains/losses -1.162 235
20. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME
2020 2021
income Expense Income Expense
Payment services 21.4%0 35,165 25112 -5.954
Card business 5,553 -3.738 6.6880 -4 315
Other 15.937 -1.427 18432 -1.638
Customer resources distributed but not managed 816 209 1911 =213
Collactive Investment 816 - 1,105 -
Other - =208 ] 213
Lending businsss 3,128 256 3,553 =361
Guaraniees given, guarantees recelved 2465 -3 2,791 -60
Loan commitments civen, loan commitments received 663 =233 762 -301
Other 321 83 33 37
Total fes and commission Incomse and expenses 25,758 -5.083 30.089 5,588
Net fee and commission Income 20.062 - 23.524 -
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21. DNIDEND INCOME

2020 2021
Income from Invesiments in Joint ventures and associates 286 226
Dividend Income 288 225
22. NET TRADING RESULT
2020 2021
Forelgn exchangs transactions income 54 B05 42 840
Forelgn exchange transactions expenses 51,951 38,180
Net Trading Result 2,854 4,660
23. RENTAL INCOME FROM INVESTMENT PROPERTIES & OTHER OPERATING LEASES
2020 2021
Inveatment properties 314 307
Other operating leasea 13 37
Rental income from Investmant properties & other operating leases 327 344

24. PERSONNEL EXPENSES, OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES AND DEPRECIATION

The average employee number of the Bank during the year ending 31 December 2021 was 522 (2020: 520).

2020 201
Personnel expenses -20,750 -21.050
Wagss and salarles -18.928 -19.266
Comgpulsory soclal security -1,719 -1.730
Long-term employves provisions [Note 16} -103 -84
Other administrative expcnses =16,391 -17,891
IT expanses -4.816 5,246
Depioeit Insurance contribution =2.831 -3.329
Expariges for office space -3.223 =3.113
Office uperating expenses -2,061 2509
Legz] and consulting costs -1.846 -2,032
Advertising/marketing 547 -862
Sundry administrative expenses -167 =800
Depreclation and amortisation 5,158 -5,291
Owner occupled real estate =1,929 -1,128
Office fumniture and egulpment and sundry property and equipment -1,850 -2 482
Software and other intangible assets -1.491 -1.655
Investment properties 86 -28
General administrative expenses 42,487 -44,232
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25. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND PROVISIONS

2020 2021
Financlal aasets at fair value through other comprehensive Income (Note 7) 864 -3
Cash and cash balances (Nota 5} 1,048 a0
Financial assets at amortised cost {Note 8) -16.126 7,380
Net increase of credit loss allowancos -10,264 -£.511
Foreciosed assels 4954 550
PoCI 414 1,374
Recoveries recorded directly to the Income statement 16 20

Modification gains or losaes 838 _2;7_
Net allocation of provisions for commitments and guarantees given (Note 16) 703 -164
Net Impairment loss on financlal Inshuments 13,910 =7.837

26. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2020 2021
Release of other provislons (MNote 16) 7170 7.413
Release of provisions for other assets (Note 11) 2387 1,880
Release of pending lagal provisions (Note 16) 3 488
Income from sale of property and foreclosed assets 1.328 3.516
Other opxerating income 2641 814
Total 13,536 13,011
27. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

2020 2021

Allocation to other provisions (Note 16} -8.103 8,262
Allocation to pravisiens for cther asssts (Note 11) -2,663 2457
Other taxes -669 938
Allocation to pending legal provislons {Note 18] -118 -288

Expenses for forsclosed assets -112 -219
Loss from disposal of propsry, plant and equipment -80 ~10

Operating axpenaes {Including repair and malntenance) for Invastment properties held for

rental income -15 8
Other operating expenses =363 183
Total =12,123 =12,385

Sparkasse Bank dd BIH



Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
(all amounts are expressed in thousand BAM, unless otherwise stated)

28. INCOME TAX

The Bank's tax liabliity Is calculated based on accounting Income taeking into the account non-deductible
expenses. Income tax rate for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 was 10%.

Total tax recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income may be presented as
follows:

2020 2021

Current Income tax ~1,608 -2.413
Deferred Income tax 621 182

Deffered income tax assels 802 343

Deffered income fax Habilites -281 -161

Income tax 987 2231

Impact of components of financlal assets measured at falr value through other comprehensive Income related to
tax

Prostax Tax After tax Pre-tax Tax After tax
amount amount amount amount amount amount
2020 2021
Fair value loss allowance 228 23 205 2,102 210 1892
Other comprehensive Incoms 228 23 208 2102 210 1,892
2020 2021
Profit before tax 12,995 26,081
_lIncome tax at the l=gal rate of 10% 1.289 2.696
Effects of :
Non-taxable income 658 -688
Non deductible expenses 181 178
Unrecognized portion of tax paid In RS and BD 155 45
Income tax 987 2.231
Effective tax rate for the year 7.59% 8.27%
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28. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Movement in deferred tax assets can be presented as follows:

2020 2021
Balance at 1 January 1,002 2,304
Increase/decrease in deferred tax assets — Impaiment Stage 1; Stage 2 ao; 320
Increase/decrease in deferred tax assets — Falr value reserves FVOCI 580 48
Increase/decrease in deferved tax assets — Other -180 137
Balance at 31 December 2304 2533

Movement in deferred tax liabllities can be presented as follows:

2020 2021
Balance at 1 January 483 =475
Increase/decreese In deferred tax Habilities — Impalrment Stage 1; Stage 2 - -
Increase/decraase in deferned tax llablities — Fair value reserves FVOCI 82 1684
Increase/decrease in deferred tax liabllities — Impalrment Falr value reserves
FVOCI 80 -
Balance at 31 December 475 =311
Balance at 31 December 1,829 2,222

29. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the nat profit attributable to ordinary shareholders by

welghted average number of ordinary shares In issue during the year.

2020 2021
Profit atirlbutabls to shareholders, net 12,008 24,730
Average number of ordinary shares durna the year 864,733 884,733
Baslc saminas per share (BEAM) 13.89 24,60

There were no dilution effects during 2021 and 2020,
30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

in the normal course of business a number of banking transactions are entered into with related parties, These
transactions were carrled out on commercial terms and conditions and at market rates.

Transactions with the direct shareholder

2020 2021
Receivables Liabliities  Recelvables Llabliities
Stelemarkische Bank und Sparkassen AG, Graz, Austria 1,014 163,545 1,015 102,638
Total 1,014 163,545 1,018 102,639
2020 2021
Income Expeanse Income Expenss
Stelermarkische Bank und Sparkassen AG, Graz, Austria 35 2,651 12 2,351
Total 35 2,651 12 2,351
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Transactions with the ultimate shareholder

2020 2021
Recelvables Llabllities Receslvables  Liabllities
Erste Bank der Oestenreichischen Sparkassen AG Vienna,
Austria 26,242 1.176 27,857 1,465
Total 25,242 1,178 27.057 1,465
2020 2021
income Expense Income Expense
Erste Bank der Oesterreichlschen Sparkaseen AG Vienna,
Austria 24 197 1 134
Total 24 187 1 134
Transactlons with the assoclate
2020 2021
Receivables Liablliities Recelvables Liabliities
Sparkasse Leasing d.0.0. Sarajevo, Bosnia and Herzegovina 831 2588 7.556 2.480
Total 631 2,588 7,558 2,460
2020 2021
Income Expense Income Expenss
Sparkasse Leasing d.c.0. Sarajevo, Bosnia and Herzegovina 331 - 420 143
Total 3 - 420 143
Transactions with other related partles
2020 2021
Recelvables Liablliiess Recelvables Llabliitles
Erste and Stelermarkische bank d,d, Zagreb, Croatia 2719 58 1.568 471
Erste Bank Akclonarsko Drustvo, Novl Sad 7 5 33 168
Sparkagse Bank a.d. Skopje, North Macedenia 268 - 43 -
Erste Digital GmbH (S IT Solutions AT Spardat GmBH)
Vienna, Austria - as8 - 440
Erste Group Card Processor d,0,0, {(vm,MBU), Zagreb,
Croatia - - . 14
Total 2987 917 1,845 1,091
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
Transactions with other related parties (continued)

2020 2021

income Expense Incoms Expense
Erste and Stelermarikische bank d,d, Zagreb, Croatia 21 17 19 8
Erste Bank Akclonarsko Drudtvo, Novi Sad - - -
Sparkaase Bank a.d. Skopje, North Macedonia - - 54 -
Erste Group Card Processor d,0,0, (vm,MBU) Zagreb,
Hrvateka - 838 - 850
Erste Digital GmbH (S IT Sclutions AT Spardat GmBH Vlenna,
Austria) - 1.416 - 1742
$ IT Solutions HR d,o,0, Bjelovar, Croatia - - - -
Total 2 22M 73 2.800

Management remunerations
The remunerations of Management Board and other members of key management were as follows:

2020 2021
Gross salaries of the Management Board members 980 953
Other benefits of the Management Board members 275 106
Fees to the Supervisory Board members 32 36
Total 1,297 1.084
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31. MANAGED FUNDS

The funds managed by the Bank, where the Bank acts as a commissioner on behalf of Individuals, trusts and
other institutions, are not Banks funds, and therefore are not included in its statement of financial position.

It the table below are shown the funds managed by the Bank In and for the name of its clients:

2020 2021

Loans
Corporate 14,189 14.056
individuals 2,351 2259

16,540 16,316
Finaneing sources
Employment agency of Federation of Bosnla and Herzegovina 14,825 14 683
Ministry of war military invallds of Zenlca—Doboj Carton 331 270
Bosnlan-Podrinje Canton Government 789 788
International guarantee agency — IGA 326 326
Zenica-Dobo] Canton Government 30 12
Employment agency of Zenica-doboj Canton 110 106_
Lutheran World Federation 73 73
Housing fund of Unsko-Sanski Canton 25 25
Employment agency of Bosnlan-Podrinje Canton 21 21

16,540 16,318

Lisbhity, net

The Bank does not bear any risk In regard to this placement, and for its services charges a fee. Liabllitles
from commigsioner business are invested In loans to companles and Individuals on behalf of third parties.
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32. REGULATORY CAPITAL AND CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

The Bank’s objectives when managing capital, which Is a broader concept than the ‘equity’ on the face of
statement of financial position, are:

» To comply with the capital requirements set by the regulators of the banking markets;

= To safeguard the Bank's ability to continue as a golng concem so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for cther stakeholders; and

« To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.
The Bank expects to maintain Its debt to capltal ratio, Solvency indicators were as follows:

2020 2021
Debt 1.462,3680 1.652,678
Equity 222.802 245439
Debt to capital ratic 6.6 6.7

Capltal adequacy and the use of net capltal are monitored by the Bank's management, employing technigues
based on the guldelines developed by FBA for supervisory purposes. The required information Is filed with
the FBA on a quartetly basls.

The Bank, through lts reporting, conducts regular monitoring of capital, achleved rate of adequacy as well as
the impact of all methodologleal changes that have an Impact on capilial.

The regulatory capital of the Bank consists of basic and supplementary capital.

The basic caplital of the Bank {fully equal to ordinary capital} consists of pald shares, ireasury shares, share
premium, retained unallocated eamings and other reserves formed from profit after taxation on the basls of
the decision of the Bank's Assembly, net revaluation reserves based on changes In fair value of assets
(accumulated comprehensive Income), net of the amount of treasury shares, Intangible assets and deferred
tax assets.

Supplementary capital consists of general impairment allowances for credit risk, calculated as 1,25% of the
risk-weighted exposure amount, less any missing credit loss allowances based on the regulatory requirement.
Missing credit loss allowances are calculated in accordance with FBA regulations. Bank calculates credit loss
allowances by FBA methodology for each contract. A positive difference is shown as missing credit loss
allowances,

The minimum required capltal rates are as follows:

. regular baslc capital rate 6,75%
. basic capital rate 9%
. regulatory capltal rate 12%

In addition to the statutory minimum adequacy rate, the Bank is also required to provide a hedging layer for
capital preservation that must be maintained in the form of regular basic capital in the amount of 2,56% of the
total amount of risk exposure.

The total weighted risk used to calculate capltal adequacy includes:

. the risk of welghted assets and credit equivalents,
. position, currency, commaodity risk, and
. operating risk.
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32. REGULATORY CAPITAL AND CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS (CONTINUED)

As of 31 December 2021 and 2020 the Bank complied with all of the externally imposed capltal requirements
to which it was subject. As of 31 December 2021 the adequacy of the Bank's capital amounis to 18,6% {2020:
18,9%).

2020 2021
Tler 1 capital
Paid up capital instruments 86.473 86473
_Share premium 3.000 3,000
_Other reserves 45206 465206
Retained eaming= 71.660 83.732
Accumulated cther comprehensive income 4.255 2208
{=) Other Intanglble assets -5.031 4,608
{-} Deductible deferred tax essets that rely on future profitabllity and arise from temporary
differences =1.877 1,860
(-} CET1 Instruments of financlal sector entitios where the Institution has a significant
investment 807 807
{=} CET1 capital elaments or deductions - other - -
Total Tler 1 capital 203,278 213,838
Tier 2 capital
Pald up capital Instruments and subordinated loans 8778 8779
T2 capilal elements or deductions - other - -
Tier 2 capltal 9.779 8.779
_Regulatory capltal 213.057 223 418
Rigk welahted exposure amounts for credi risks (unaudlted) 1,044,955 1,121,836
Risk exposure amount for position n excharige and commodities risks (unaudited) 2138 3.661
Risk exposure amount for operational rigk (unaudited) 78 258 77 861
Total Risk Weighted asset 1.125.351 1,203,358
Total capital ratio (%)" 189 18,8

*Amounts of capltal and other balance sheet positions in the table above are calculated in accordance with regulations of the
Banking Agenocy of FBIH
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33. RISK MANAGEMENT
a) Risk management policles and strategles

A key function of each bank is to consciously and selectively take risks and professionally manage such risks.
Proactlve risk management policy and strategy The Bank aims to establish a balanced ratio of assumed risks
and retums In order to achleve sustalnable and adequate returns on equity.

The Bank uses risk management and control functions that are proactive and tailored to thelr business profile
and risk profile, based on a clear risk-taking strategy that Is consistent with the Group's business strategy and
focused on the early identification and management of risks and frends. In addition to meeting the intemal
cbjectives of effective and efficlent risk management, risk management structures and control functions of
the Bank have been developed to meet external and regulatory requirements.

In accordance with the Bank's business strategy, the key risks are credit, market, operational and liquidity
risk. The Bank also focuses on managing macrceconomic risk as well as concentrations within and between
different types of risk.

b)  Credit isk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on Ilts contractual obligations resulting In financial
loss to the Bank. The Bank has adopted a pollcy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtalning
sufficlent collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financlat loss from defaults.

The Bank's exposure and the credlt ratings of its counterparties are continucusly monitored and the aggregata
value of transactions concluded Is spread amongst approved counterparties. Cradit exposure is controlled by
counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by the Board, provided by reports from Risk management
department.

Except stated below in table, the carrying amount of financlal asset presented in financial statements,
decreased for losses besed on Impairments, reprasentis the Bank's maximum exposure to credit risk without
taking account the value of any collateral obtained.

Credit risk classification (internal rating)

The purpose of the internal rating is to ensure a corract presentation of credit risk in the Bank's portfolio and
to ensure fulfilment of Basel 1 criteria, Internal rating plays a key role In the process of managing credit risk
and making decisions. Rating Is an Important Input for risk provigions, risk price, capital management and
credit declslon, Intemnal rating is a prerequisite for any credit request and / or approval.

All rating relevant cllents and client groups {l.e. all debtors with debt or debt ratic In relation to relevant
exposure to risks and losses) must be assessed.

The calculation of impairment on credit losses is carried out on a monthly basis. at the exposure level / asset
level, in the exposure currency. Te calculate the loss reserve, an ECL model is based on a three-stage
approach that leads to a 12-month ECL or lifetime ECL.
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33. RISK MANAGEMENT
b) Credlt risk management (Continued)

A step-by-step approach means that If financial assets are not recognized as purchased or generated credit
impaired financial assets {POCIs), i.e. financial assets Impaired on initial recognition, then depending on the
status of impairment and the estimate of credit risk increases, financial assets are allocated fo one of the
following stages:

1) Stage 1 Includes:
a) Financlal assets at Initial recognition, except:
iy POCI assets

(ii) Assets whose Initlal recognition was Inltially induced by the oblligatory credit obligations given
to the other counterparty for which there was a significant deterloration in the credit status since
initial recognition of that credit obligation, but which is not in default at the time of such first use

b} Financial assets that meet the requirements of low credit risk

c) Financlal assets without significant credit risk Increases from Initlal recognition regardless of Its credit
quality.
At Stage 1 credit risk loss allowanceas are calculated as a 12-month expected credit loss.

2) Stage 2 includes financlal assets with a significant increase in cradit risk but not impaired at the
reporting dats, including Initlal recognition of assets under 1) a} and li) above.

At Stage 2 credit risk loss allowances are calculated as lifetime credit loss.

3) Stage 3 Includes financial assets that are credit impaired on the reporting date. In this stage credit loss
allowancesare calculated as the lifetime credit loss. Impairment is defined as the occurrence of one or more
events that have a defrimental effect on the estimated future cash flows of a financial asset. All events
Included in the definition of credit Impaired are consldered in the definition of defauit used In the Bank.

Definition of default and recovery status

The following default definition is applied in the Bank: Default is when one or both of the following events
ocour:

« The client is late for more than 90 days with any material loan liability, or
« It is considered unrealistic that the client will pay his credit liabilities in full without collateral realization.

When a client defaults, this means that his financlal instrument has been credit impaired, l.e. in the status of
default, and assigned the Internal rating "R" on that occasion. This further means that all default client's
financial Instruments are credit Impalred. If the client Is upgraded tc a non-default rating, then all of thelr
financial assets will no longer be credit impaired.

The materiality of the due loan liabllity Is assessed according to the threshold, which Is defined by the relevant
regulatory bodies. This threshold reflects the level of risk the competent authority considers reasonable.
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33. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
b) Credit risk management (continued)

Definition of default and recovery status (continued)

Default definition has changed In treatment of joint obligation. Joint obligor is treated as a cllent frem a risk point of
view.If a Joint obligor exceeds 90 DPD then all clients of this joint obligor default automatically. Joint credit cbligation
with other obligors and connected with one of these defaulted cllents is separately assessed, meaning thet if one or
more obligors of a joint credit obligation default with their individual exposures and If after assessment at least one
remalning co-obligors can fulfll the obllgation, the JCO and co-obligor shall stay performing.

Joint credit obligation with other obligors and connected with cne of these defaulted clients must be separately
assessed.

K all indlvidual obligors of a JCQ default, all their JCOs with the same set of obllgors (assigned to the same JO) are
automatically considered as defaulted.

PD assessment process

The process of PD assessment Is done depending on the available data and the adequacy of data for a particular
portfolle. Accordingly, the assessment of lifeime PDs is applied on the basls of the methodological concept of the
parent group.

For the portfollo of legal entities as well as private individuals, the method of analysing the average default rate is used.
This method is based an counting all migrations from each default rating to default / non-default over a given period.

EAD, Exposure at Default, Is the total exposure (amount) that is subject to credit risk provisions In accordance with
IFRS 9. The Bank's EAD calculation differs in the statement of financlal position and off-balance sheet. Generally,
gross amortized cost (GCA) and potentlal future exposure are taken into account, which Is the best estimate of the
expenditure required in relation to the unconditional commitment of future borrowing or other off-balance items such
as guarantees / letters of credit. Potential future exposure Is estimated using a credit conversion factor (CCF), which
can be defined as an Indicator of utllization for off-balance sheet items such as guarantees, letters of credit and credit
line instrument features (eg current debit or credit card), which Is the uncertainty of the amount which is recognized as
off-balance sheet reserve, which deals with varlous assets in accordance with the circumstances.

In assessing potential future exposure, the Bank estimates the time and amount of potential cash outflows. Where the
effect of the time value of money is significant, the amount of the provisioning should be the present value of the costs
that are expected to be required to seitle the obligation.

The assessment of potential future exposure is differentiated for part of the portfolio that takes into account the
expected cash flows from the repayment plan and that part of the portfolios for which It Is not applicable.

LGD

A Loss Given Default (LGD) parameter describes the percentage of outstanding liabilities at the moment of default
(EAD) in case of non-payment. The general approach is to estimate the Loss Given Default (LGD) parameter based
on a deterministic approach, caiculated on the Bank's historical data. The LGD used by the Bank to calculate
impairment losses on loans and other receivables Is based Is differentiated per homogenous groups, and is finally
calculated on asset level, taking into account the remalning maturity of the asset as well as the characteristics of the
segment to which asset corresponds.In additlon, for defaulted exposures the Bank Is applylng more stringent LGD
values than calculated ones for certaln segments of Pl portfolio, since the sample was rather small.
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33. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
b}  Credit risk management {continued)
Forward looking information

The Bank used supporiable forward locking information for measurement of ECL. To incomporate different macro
scenarios the Bank used three different scenarlos {downside, base, upside). Those scenarios are received from Erste
Group.

Scenario probabliltes

Yoar1 Year 2 Year 3

Scenarios
2021 2022 2028
Downside 56% 55% 55%
Base 40% 40% 40%
Upside 5% 5% 5%
GDP GROWTH
Year 1 Year 2 Year 3

Scenarios
2021 2022 2023
Downslde -1.23% 0.25% =0.28%
Base 4.50% 3.20% 3.30%
Upside 5.83% 4.53% 4.03%
INFLATION - CPI
Yeur1 Yoar 2 Yoar3

Sconarios
201 2022 2023
Downslde -2.20% £0.03% 0.62%
Base 3.40% 1.50% 1.80%
Upside 4.28% 2.38% 2.88%
UNEMPLOYMENT
Year1 Year 2 Yoar3

Scenarios
2021 2022 2023
Downslde 25.36% 24.92% 24.74%
Base 17.30% 16.80% 16.80%
Upside 18.83% 16.33% 16.13%

Probabilities of three scenarios (base, downside, upside) are calculated In comdination with Erste Group. For 2021-
2023 macrovariables used as received by Erste Group.

Grouping of financlal assets measured on collective approach basis
The grouping of financial assets measured on collective approach basis is applied in the following cases:
* Where there Is no objective evidence of impairment or

* When there is evidence of impairment, but exposure Is not Individually material.
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33. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

b) Credit risk management (continued)

Forward looking Information {continued)

Grouping of financial assets measured on Individual approach basls

The grouping of financial assets measured on individual approach basis is made based on of valid regulatory guidelines
that define the materiality threshold for exposures that are considered individually material.

In the case of Sparkasse Bank d,d, BiH, this threshold Is BAM 150 thousand. Individually materal exposure Is
Individually tested for objective evidence of Impairment.

Methodology for POCI

POCI assets are not part of the transfer in Stages regardless of the change in the client’s credit risk after initial
recognition of POCI assets, POCI assets are subject to expected lifetime credit losses from Initial recognition to full
derecognition. Further, expected lIfletime credit losses, expacted on the date of Initlal recognition of POCI assets, must
be taken Into account when calculating the fair value of the asset at that date and are not recognized as provisions for
credlt losses (while subsequent changes to those Inltial expectations only result In recognition of the provision for
impalrment losses only if It results in lower expectations compared to the start date, while those that result In better
expectations than the recognition date are recognized as an Increase In the gross book value of POCI assets). For all
these reasons, POCI is defined as a “Stage® per se, as POCI assets have never fully behaved elther as Stage 3 assets
or as Stage 2 or 1 assets, regardless of changes in cllent's credit risk after Initlal recognition. According to the
recommendations issued by the FBA, for all POCI contracts, after initial recognition at least minimum regulatory CLA
is calculated based on the days past due.

Significant increase of credit risk (SICR)

The Bank based iis estimate of significant Increase In credit risk based on a regular monthly assessment of qualitative
and/or quantitative indicators of creditworthiness of the client. Qualitative elements Include Indlcators that are the result
of a regular customer tracking process through the EWS system as well as other elements (e.g. days overdue,
forbearance, workout and fraud status) and data available to the Bank. Quantitative elements rely on monitoring the
absolute and relative change in the probability of default of a customer in relation to the date of initial recegnition of a
particular financial placement.

Credit exposure

Credit exposure includes all financial instruments in Bank's portfolio except for cash in the register and CBBH account
balances.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
(all amounts are expressed in thousand BAM, unless otherwise stated)

33. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
b}  Credit risk management (continued)

Minimum rates for expected credit l[osses

As menticned in Note 2 Declsion on Credit Risk Management and Determining Expected Credit Losses (hereinafter
the “Decision) prescribed minimum rates for expected credit losses for different stages.

When It comes to value of expected credit losses calculated in accordance with methodology the Bank shall apply
minimum rates of expected credit losses defined in this sectlon, by using whichever Is higher from following values:
¢ value of expected credit losses calculated in accordance with intemal methodology
« value of expected credit losses calculated by using minimum rates of expected credit losses as defined by the
Declslon
Those minimum rates are presented below.

Minimum rates of expected credit losses for Stage 1

For exposures classified into Stage 1, the Bank needs to determine and recerd In its books the expected credit losses
in below given amounts as a minimum;

1. for exposures with low credit risk— 0.1% of exposure,

2. for exposures to central governments and central banks outside Bosnia and Herzegovina, which have credit
evaluation from an acknowledged extemnal institution for evaluation of credit rating which, In accordance with
Article 69 of the Declsion on calculation of bank capital are classifled Into medium credit quality 3 and 4 —
0,1% of exposure,

3. for exposures to banks and other subjects from financial sector which have credit evaluation from an
acknowledged external institution for evaluation of credit rating which, in accordance with Article 68 of the
Declsion on calculation of bank capiltal are classified Into credit quallty tevels 1, 2 or 3 - 0.1% of exposure,

4. for all other exposures — 0.5% of the expasure,

The expected credit loss for exposures In form of cash in hand and cash at bank Is 0%, provided that all condltions
related to property protection prescribed by sub-legal act regulating system of internal controls in the Bank have been
met.

Minimurn rates of expected credit losses for Stage 2

For exposures classified into Stage 2, the Bank needs to datermine and record in its books the expected credit losses
in the minimum amount of 5% of exposure.
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for the year ending 31 December 2021
(all amounts are expressed in thousand BAM, uniess otherwise stated)

33. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
b)  Credit risk managemeant (continued)
Minimum rates of expected credit losses for Stage 3

For exposures classified Into Stage 3, the Bank needs to determine and record in its books the expected credit losses
in amounts defined in Table 1 or Table 2, as a minimum.

Minimum rates of expected credif losses for exposures secured by an acceplable collateral

No. Days past due Minimum expected credit loss
1. up to 180 days 15%
2. from 181 to 270 days 25%
3. from 271 to 365 days 40%
4, from 366 to 730 days 80%
5. from 731 o 1460 davs 80%
6. over 1460 days 100%

Minimum rates of expected credit losses for exposures not secired by an acceptable collateral

No. Days past due Minimum expecte:d credit loss
1. up to 180 days 15%

2. from 181 to 270 days 45%

3 from 271 to 365 days 75%

4. from 366 to 456 days 85%

5. over 456 days 100%
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
(all amounts are exprossed In thousand BAM, unless otherwise stated)

33. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
b) Credit risk management {(continued)
Minimum rates of expected credit losses for Stage 3 (continued)

The Bank determines minimum expecied credit losses In accordance with diagram below:;

Exposure not secured by an accepiable collateral Expected losses in
Secured part aocordancsz with Table
Exposure partially secured by an
acceptable collateral Unsecured part acm%eggle
1

If the Bank has undertaken relevant legal actions, and if it can document probability of collection from the
acceptable collateral during the next three years, it does not have to increase the level of expacted credit
losses over 80% of exposure. Thereby the estimate of future cash flows from an acceptable collateral reduced
to present value needs to be higher than 20% of such exposure.

In case the Bank fails to collect recelvables In the perlod of three years, it will have to racord in its books
expected credit losses In the amount of 100% of the exposure.

In case of restructured exposures, the Bank shall, during each 12 months of recovery period, keep the
expected credit losses at the same coverage level as formed upon the appraval of restructuring, which cannot
be lower than 15% of exposure.

The Bank is required to determine and record In Its books expected credit logses in the amount of 100% of
exposure for every third and subsequent restructuring of previously restructured exposure, which at the
moment of restructuring was classified into Stage 3 or POCI assets, except for situations where the Bank has
undertaken relevant legal actions and If it can document probabiliity of collection from the acceptable collateral
during the next three years, it does not have fo increase the level of expected cradit losses over 80% of
exposure.

For exposures where the client has failed to fulfll their obligations towards the Bank within 60 days from the
date of demand for payment under a previcusly issued guarantes, the latest, the Bank shall be required to
determine and record In Its books expected credit losses in the amount of 100%, expect for situations where
the Bank has undertaken relevant legal actions and K it can document probability of collection from the
acceptable collateral during the next three years, it does not have to increase the level of expected credit
losses over 80% of exposure.

For NPLs, it is consldered that there Is uncertainty of collection of interest income, and therefore recognition
of these assets in the profit or loss shall be postponed until their collection. Such receivables from interest
shall be recorded in Bank's books until their collection.
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33. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
b}  Credit risk management (continued)

Minimum rates of expected credit losses for trade recelvables, receivables from
factoring and financial leasing, as well as other recelvables

Rates of expected credit losses for trade recelvables, receivables from factoring and financial leasing, as well
as other raceivables are given in table below:

Minimum rates of expected credit losses

No. | Days past due Minimum expecied credit loss

1. no default in materiallv significant amount 0.5%
2, up to 30 days 2%

3. | from 31 fo 60 days 5%

4. | from 61 o 90 days 10%
5. | from 91 fo 120 days 15%
6. | from 121 to 180 days 50%
7. | from 181 to 365 days 75%
8. over 365 days 100%

When determining number of days past due for receivables, the Bank shall take into consideration default in
repaying liabilities towards the bank in materially significant amount.
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ending 31 December 2021

(all amounts are expressed In thousand BAM, unless otherwise stated)

33. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
b) Credit risk management (continued)

Credit risk exposure by risk category

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
Credit risk exposure 31 December
2021 1,464,083 180,306 60,838 2344 1.707.670
Share of credit rak exposure 85.74% 10.56% 3.56% 0.14% 100.00%
Credit risk exposure 31 Decamber
2020 1.305.865 188.374 59.789 1.652 1.556.690
Share of credit risk exposure 83.89% 12,17% 3.84% 0.11% 100.00%
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
{all amounts are expressed In thousand BAM, uniess otherwise stated)

33. RISK MANAGEMENT {(CONTINUED)
c) Market risk management

Market risk is the risk of loss that may arise from adverse changes in market prices and the resulting
parameters

The Bank's Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and
international financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Bank
through Internal risk reports, which analyze exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include
market sk (including currency risk and fair value Interest rate risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow
interest rate risk.

Currency risk management

The bank is exposed to various types of exchange rate risks. This involves the risk of an open currency
position and other risks. An open currency position risk Is a risk associated with a mismatch between assets
and llabililes in a particular currency or from currency derivatives. This type of risk can arlse from client
transactions or trading on s own account and is monitored and managed on a dally basis. Exposure to
currency risk Is limited by regulatory and Intemnal limits. Internaf limits are set by the Management Board.

The following table shows the largest open currency positions at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020:

2020 2021
Euro 837 3.487
American dolar =174 =120
Other -136 -226

Forelgn currency sensitivity analysis

The Bank is mainly exposed to EUR, USD and other currencies. Since Convertible Mark (BAM) Is pegged
to EUR, the Bank Is not exposed to risk of change of EUR exchange rate.

The following table detalls the Bank's sensitivity to a 10% Increase and dacreasa In BAM against USD and
other currencies. 10% Is the sensitivity rate used when reporting forelgn currency risk Internally to key
management personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change In
forelgn exchange rates. The sensitivity analysls includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
menetary ltems In currencles different from lender and borrower currencies. A poesitive number below
indicates an increase in profit or other capital where BAM strengthens 10% against other relevant currency..
For a 10% weakening of BAM against other relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposlte impact
on the profit, and the balances below would be negative.

USD Effect
2020 2021
Gain / {loss) 17 12

Sparkasse Bank dd BiH 87



Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
{all amounts are expressed In thousand BAM, unless otherwise stafed)

33. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
c) Market risk management
Interest rate risk management

The Bank Is exposed to interest rate risk as the Bank is placing and borrowing funds at fixed Interest rates.
The Bank's exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detalled in the liquidity
risk management section of this note (see point i),

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for derivative
and non-derivative instruments at the reporting period date. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of iabllity outstanding at the reporting period date was outstanding for the whole year.
A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internaily to key management
personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Bank's
net profit for the year ending 31 December 2021 would Increase / decrease by BAM thousand 4,185 (2020:
by BAM 5,100 thousand}.

d) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibliity for liquidity risk management rests with the Management Board, which has created an
adequate framework for the management of liquidity risk to be used for the management of long-, mid- and
short-term needs for the management of the Bani’'s liquidity. The Bank manages this type of risk by
maintaining adequate reserves and other sources of financing, by constantly monitoring the projected and
actual cash flows and by comparing maturity profiles of financial assets and llablities.

The following table detalls the rest of Bank's contractual maturities for financlal assets. The table is prepared
based on nondiscounted financial assets cash flows, including interest for that assets and Interest for that
asset that will be eamed, except for the assets that it is expected for the cash flow to appear in the future
period.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ending 31 December 2021
(all amounts are expressed in thousand BAM. unless otherwise stated)

35. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
Since 1 January 2022, Igor JokI¢ Is Member of the Management Board. -

As of 24 February 2022. Russia started military Invaslon on Ukraine. This mllitary invaslon caused global
changes on political and economic level. Management considers this outbreak to be a non-adjusting event
after the reporting perlod end date 31. December 2021. While this Is still an ongeing situation at the time of
issuing these financial statements, there has been no discernible impact on the Bank’s operations, however
the future effects cannot be predicted. Management continues to monitor the impact of the military Invaslon
on the Bank's business operations and is taking all steps possible to mitigate any effects.

There were no other significant subsequent events that would have a significant Impact on the financial
statements for 2021 or that would require disclosure in the notes to the financlal statements.

36. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial STB@ approved by the Management Board of the Bank on 14.-April _262—?'3
— / ; iy

¢ /
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Amir Softi¢ Igor Bllandi}

President of the Management Board Member of the Management Board
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